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BOARD' REPORT 

To Members, 
Nova Iron and Steel Limited 
Registered office: Village-Dagori, 
Tehsil-Belha, Distt.-Bilaspur 
Chhattisgarh 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 26th 
Annual Report together with Standalone & 
Consolidated Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st 
March, 2018. 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (STANDALONE) 

(Rs. in Lacs) 

Particulars 2017·18 2016-17 
(12Months) (12Months) 

Gross Revenue 2126.96 5692.30 
ProfiVLoss before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 1006.62 1053.19 
Interest & Financial Cost 677.77 666.26 
Depreciation &Amortization 101.80 118.SQ 
ProfiV(Loss) before Tax 227.05 268.33 
Deferred Tax Assets (+)/Liability(·) 0.78 ·11.63 
ProfiV(Loss) after Tax 227.83 256.70 
Net Profit/(Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet 227.83 256.70 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
Company earned gross revenue Rs. 2126. 96 lacs for 
the financial year under review as compared to Rs. 
5692.30 lacs for the previous financial year. Company 
earned profit of Rs. 227.83 lacs after tax as compared 
to Rs. 256. 70 lacs for the previous year. 

OPERATION AND FUTURE OUTLOOK 
During the year some of the major over-leveraged 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

transferred to Reserve and Surplus. 

DIVIDEND 
In view of inadequate profit during the year, Board of 
Directors has not recommended Dividend for 
distribution. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
There was no change in the nature of business of the 
Company during the financial year. 
BOARD MEETINGS 
During the financial year, 05 (Five) meetings of Board 
of Directors of the Company held including one Meeting 
of the Independent Directors. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The composition of Audit Committee comprises, 
3(three) members, Mr. N. Awatar, Independent 
Director and Mr Arvind Gupta, Independent Director 
and Mr. R. P. Goyal, Director. Mr. N. Awatar is Chairman 
of the Committee. Audit Committee have powers and 
authority as provided under the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations 2015, in accordance with the 
terms of reference specified by the Board of Directors 
from time to time. Board has accepted all 
recommendations of the Committee made during the 
year. During the year 4(four) meeting of audit 
committee held and committee has reviewed related 
party transactions periodically. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
The extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 under 
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and rules made 
thereunder is at Annexure -1 attached to Board's 
Report. 
AUDITORS 

companies in the infrastructure, power generation and The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, has amended 
steel sector were referred to National Company Law Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 effective 
Tribunal (NCLT) under Insolvency and Banl<:ruptcy from 7th May, 2018 whereby first proviso to Section 
Code (IBC). Overall the sectors that company operates 139(1) is omitted which provided for ratification of re-
in remained depressed, adversely impacting the appointment of Auditors by members at every Annual 
business of the Company. Resolution under IBC and General Meeting. 
eff&tive-monitoring-of'-ereclit-quality-by-Banks-is---rnview-onnesame-tneBoarirof-Dlrecfors- have-·--~---·· 
expected to provide stable and favorable markets from proposed the appro~al of the members for re-
FY'l 9 onwards. appointment of M/s. Mehra Goel & Co., Chartered 
In response to recent declines and higher volatility in Accountants, Firm Regd. No. 000517N, New Delhi, as 
steel and raw material prices, the Company is in Auditors of the Company, for the term of four years i.e. 
process to implement a number of cost-saving from the Conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till 
measures intended to improve operating income as the conclusion of the 30th Annual General Meeting to 
well as measures to enhance cash generation from the be held in 2022. 
business. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 
CAPITAL & RESERVES 
During the year there is no change in the capital of the 
Company. Company has not transferred any amount to 
the General Reserve. Balance of profit has been 
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In terms of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule 9 of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Board at its 
meeting held on 30/05/2017 appointed M/s Sharma 



Sarin & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, 
Chandigarh as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, 
to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 
31/03/2018 and to submit Secretarial Audit Report in 
Form No. MR-3. A copy of the Secretarial Audit Report 
is at Annexure-2 a1'tached to Board Report. 

AUDITORS' REPORTS 
Auditors have not made any· qualification/adverse 
remarks on the Financial Statement for the year ended 
31st March 2018. The observations, if any, are 
self-explanatory and calls for no comments. 

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark made by the Secretarial Auditor in their 
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 
31.03.2018. 
COST AUDIT 
Compi;iny is not required to appoint Cost Auditor since 
the turnover of the Company is below prescribed limit. 
However Company is maintaining Cost Records. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
Company's Board is duly constituted which is in 
compliance with the requirements of the Act, and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulation, 2015. 
Since last Financial year, the following changes have 
taken place in the Directorship/KMPs of the Company. 
Sh. Sanjay Singal (DIN 00006579), Npn-Executive 
Director is due to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. A 
brief profile along with necessary disclosures of Sh. 
Sanjay Singal has been annexed to the Notice 
convening the ensuing AGM. 

None of the Directors has incurred disqualification 
under Section 164 of the Act or liable to cease director 
under section 167 of the Act. 
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

( d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts 
on a going concern basis. 

( e) the internal financial controls to be followed by the 
company were laid down and such internal 
financial controls were adequate and were 
operating effectively. 

(f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws were devised. 

DIRECTOR IDENTIFICATION NUMBER {DIN) 
Present Directors have obtained Director Identification 
Number (DIN) under Director Identification Rules, 
2006 which is valid DIN under Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014. 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 
DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 
OTHER EMPLOYEES 
Board of Directors of the Company has approved a 
policy for nomination and remuneration for directors , 
KMP and other employees containing interalia criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a director, payment of Managerial 
remuneration, and other related matters is at 
Annexure-3 attached to the Board's Report which can 
be assessed at Company's weblink; 
http ://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Rem uneration% 
20Policy.pdf. 

PARTICULARS RELATING TO TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Act 
regarding conservation of Energy, Technology 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)( c) of the Act, with regard to Absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo is 
Directors' Responsibility Statement, your Directors enclosed at Annexure - 4 attached to Board's Report. 
hereby confirm that: INTERNAL AUDITORS AND ADEQUACY OF 
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, for the INTERNALFINANC_lA_L_CON_TROLS_ 

------y~ear enaea-3T~03.2m1n:neappffcabTe-IncFA-s --c~~~~-n~-h~-;-~~pointed M/s Rajesh Aggarwal & 
have been followed to the extent of its applicability Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountant as 
along with proper explanation relating to material Internal Auditor. Internal control framework of the 
departures. Company is adequate and commensurate with the 

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting nature of the business and size of the. Company. The 
policies and applied them consistently and made internal auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and adequacy of Internal Financial Control system in the 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the company, its compliance with operating system, 
state of affairs of the ('.:ompany at the end of the accounting procedures and policy. Internal Auditors 
financial year and of the profit of the Company for submit his report to Audit committee half yearly. 

theyear; PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEE, 
( c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care INVESTMENT OR PROVIDING SECURITY 

of the maintenance of adequate accounting 
During the financial year, Company has neither given 
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Loan nor given guarantee nor provided security or 
made investment u/s 186 of the Act. (Please refer note 
4 attacl'led to financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31/03/2018 in respect of investments 
of the Company). 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
During the year under review, the particulars of 
contract and arrangement entered into by the 
Company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 including certain contract/arrangement at arm's 
length are disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 at Annexure - 5 
attached to Board's Report. Pursuant to regulation 
23( 4) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, company has 
taken the approval of shareholders in 25th AGM for 
material related party transactions. (Please refer note 
34 of attached financial statement of related party 
transaction) 
EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION 
Company has not issued Sweat Equity Shares or ESOP 
(Employees Stock Option) to its employees. 
LISTING 
The Equity shares of the company are listed at Bombay 
Stock Exchange. The Company has paid listing fees to 
the Stock Exchange forthe year 2017-18. 
BUY BACK OF SHARES 
During the year, Company has not made buy back of its 
shares nor it has given any loan for purchase of its own 
shares. 
MATERIAL CHANGE(S) 
No material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company occurred between 
the end of the financial year to which this financial 
statements relate and the date of this Report. 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

Directors also held separate meeting to evaluate 
annual performance of Chairman and executive 
directors and expressed satisfaction on their 
perform a nee. 
DEPOSITS 
During the year under report, company has not 
accepted any deposits under Chapter V of the Act, from 
the public and as such no amount of principal or 
interest was outstanding on the date of Balance Sheet. 
Information under Rule 8(5)(v)(vi) of Companies 
(Accounts), Rules 2014 be treated as Nil. 
SEGMENT REPORTING 
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of 
manufacturing / trading of Iron & Steel, Metals, 
Securities & Natural Resources business and also 
engaged in Trading in commodities. Accordingly 
segment report has been disclosed at note 31 of 
attached financial statement. 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
During the year there was no significant and material 
orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company's 
operations in future. 
PARTICULARS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF 
EMPLOYEESOFTHECOMPANY 
Details pursuant to section 197(12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
at Annexure -6 attached to the Board' Report. During 
the year no employee. has remuneration equal to or 
more than prescribed limit under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, hence information 
under these rules be treated as NIL. Pursuant to MCA 
Notification dated 30.06.2016 detail of top ten 
employees as attached to Board Report is at Annexure-7 
CODE OF CONDUCT 

Board of Directors has adopted a Risk Management 
Policy/Plan for the Company, whereby, risks are Declaration pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of .sEBI 
broadly categorized. The Policy outlines the (~ODR) Regulations, 2015 in r.espec~ of compl1~nce 

------1parameters-of-identffieation, -assessment;-monit0ring---w1thJ;P~_e_o_fe_QOd_uct_by_\N_boJeLT1me_Q1rectorj_CEQ_1s_at __________ _ 
and mitigation of various risks which are key to Annexure-8 attach to the Board Report. 
business objectives which is also available at CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY 
Company's weblink: http://www.novaironsteel.com Company has constituted Corporate Social 
/pdfs/Risk%20Management%20Policy.pdt Responsibility (CSR) Committee. Mr. R.P. Goyal, 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD Director, Mr. H.C. Verma, Whole Time Director and Mr. 

During the year under report Board of Directors 
evaluated, performance of Committees and all the 
individual Directors including Independent Directors 
and concluded by affirming that the Board 
summarizing as a whole as well as all of its Directors, 
individually and the Committees of the Board 
continued to good governance and contribute its best 
in the overall growth of the organisation. Independent 

Narsingh Awatar, Independent Director are members 
of the Committee. Mr. R.P. Goyal is the Chairman of the 
Committee. On the recommendation of CSR 
Committee , CSR Policy of the Company has been 
approved by the Board which is uploaded at Company's 

• weblink: http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/ 
CSR%20Policy.pdf.The Annual Report on CSR activities 
as per Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

7 



Policy) Rules, 2014 is at Annexure -9 attached to the 
Board's Report. Company was not required to spend 
any amount on CSR Activities during the year since 
company has incurred net average loss in last three 
years of the company. 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR 
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
Company do not have Subsidiary or Associates 
company. Company has one Joint Venture. A report on 
performance and financial position of Joint Venture 
company included in the consolidated financial 
statement in form AOC-1 annexed to the Board' Report 
at Annexure-10. 
VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
Company has in place a composite 'Vigil Mechanism' 
Policy/Whistle Blower Policy available to the employees 
and directors to blow the whistle/ highlight any fraud, 
irregularity, wrongdoing etc. which is also available at 
web I ink: http ://www. nova iron steel .com/pdfs/ 
Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf. Audit Committee periodically 
reviewed Vigil Mechanism. 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
A report on Corporate Governance in compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance in terms of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is atAnnexure-11. 
A certificate of Statutory Auditors and a certificate from 
Whole Time Director/CEO of the Company regarding is 
at Annexure-12 and 13 respectively attached to 
Board's Report in compliance of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 
GENERAL 
(i) ENVIRONMENT & OTHER APPLICABLE LAW 

The Company is committed to the protection of 
environment and is not involved in any activity 
hazardous to environment. The Company adheres 
to the provisions of the applicable provisions of 
environment laws. 

(ii) HEALTH &SAFETY 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

(iv) INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
Relations between the Management and its 
Employees/ Workmen have been cordial and 
management expressed their appreciation for the 
co-operation and dedication of the 
employees/workmen at all levels of the Company. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
Your Directors convey their sincere thanks to the 
Bankers, various departments in Central and State 
Governments and all others associated with the 
Company for their co-operation, continued support and 
confidence reposed by them in the Company. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 

For and on behalf of the Board 

(Sanjay Singal) 
Chairman 

DIN:00006579 

_________ In_:_orde+-to---buikl-a--sustaiMble-work-plaee -­
environment, a common health and safety 
management system is being implemented. All 
efforts are being made to enhance safety 
standards and processes in order to minimize 
safety risks in all our operations. 

(iii) SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN 
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual 
harassment at the workplace. During the Financial 
Year 2017-18, the Company has received no 
complaints of sexual harassment since there is no 
female employee. 
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NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

(i) CIN L02710CT1989PLC010052 (ii) Reqistration Date 01/05/1989 

ANNEXURE-1 

(iv) Category I Sub-
Company limited by shares/ 

(iii) Name of Company Nova Iron & Steel Limited Category of the Company 
Indian Non- government 
Comoanv. 

(v) Address of the 
Village-Dagori, Tehsil Belha, (vi) Whether listed company Yes 
Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh -495224 

Registered office and Te1:07752-285217, Fax:07752-
contact details 285213 

(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, D-153A, 1st 

Transfer Agent, if any 
Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi 1100020, 
Tel+91 011 40450193 to 97 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: 

I SI. No. , Name and Description of main 
oroducts/ services 

NIC Code of the Product/ service I % to total turnover of the 
company 

I 1. I Iron & Steel I Trading in Commodity & Security 271 I 85.28 

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND JOINT VENTURE, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

S.No Name and CIN/GLN Holding/ % of equity 

1 

address of the subsidiary shares held 
company /Associate 
Bijahan Coal U10101CH2015PTC035511 Joint Venture 5% 
Private Limited 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

(I) Category-wise Share Holding 

Applicable section 

2(6) of Companies 
Act, 2013 

Category of No. of Equity Shares held at the beginning of No. of Equity Shares held at the end of the % 
Shareholders ·the year year Change 

------ ------ - --- -- ---- ----- - -- -- --------- -- - - -- -- -- ---- ---- ----- _during ___ 
- ----- -- ----- --------- the vear 

Demat Physical Total %ofTotal De mat Physical Total % of Total 
Equity Equity 
Shares Shares 

A. PROMOTERS 

(1) Indian 

(a)lndividual/HUF 0 0 0 0 4340000 0 4340000 12.01 12.01 
(b )Central Govt. -
(c) State Govt. 
(d)Bodies Coro. 25228821 0 25228821 69.81 20888821 0 20888821 57.80 -12.01 
(e)Banks/FI 
(!)Any other ... 
Sub- Total (A ) (1) :- 25228821 0 25228821 69.81 25228821 0 25228821 69.81 0 
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(2) FOREIGN 
(a) NRls- Individuals 
(b) Other· Individuals 

(cl Bodies Coro. -
(d) Banks/Fl - - -
(e) Any other .. -
Sub· Total(A) (2) : • 

Total Shareholding of 25228821 0 25228821 69.81 25228821 0 25228821 69.81 0 
Promoter (A)= 
(Al(1)+A(2) 
B. Public Shareholding 

1. INSTITUTIONS 
a) Mutual Funds 3600 497736 501336 1.39 3600 472728 476328 1.32 -0.07 

b) Banks /Fl 0 144 144 0 0 144 144 0 0 

c) Central Govt 

d) State Govt(s) 

e) Venture Capital Funds 

f) Insurance Companies 

g) Flis -
h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds 

i) Others (Specify) 

Sub• Total (B ) (1) : • 3600 497880 501480 1.39 3600 472872 476472 1.32 -0.07 

2.NON·INSTITUTIONS 

(a) BODIES CORP. 

(i) Indian 1928683 20880 1949563 5.39 1919029 20880 1939909 5.37 -0.02 

(ii) Overseas - - - - . 
(b) INDIVIDUALS 
(i) lnd'1vidual Shareholders 2008806 5656778 7665584 21.21 1979612 5621882 7601494 21.03 -0.18 

holding nominal share 
capital uoto Rs. 1 Lakh 

(ii) Individual Shareholders 579574 44112 623686 1.73 655214 65568 720782 1.99 0.26 
holding nominal share 
Capital in excess of Rs. 1 
Lakh 

(c) Others (Specify) 24098 146256 170354 0.47 27386 144624 172010 0.48 0.01 
Non Residents 

~--

Sub· Total 4541161 5868026 10409187 28.80 4581241 5852954 10434195 28.87 0,07 
(B)(2) :· 

Total Sh a1el1oldi119113F 4544761 6365906 1-091'0667 30.W 458lllf41 6325826 . 10910667 30.19 0 
(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

c. Shares held by custodian . - . 
tor GDRs &ADRS 

Grand Total 29773582 6365906 36139488 100 29813662 6325826 36139488 100.00 0 
(A+B+C) 
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(Ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

RGF Real Estate 12 Private Limited 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

94000 

94000 

94000 

94000 

94000 

94000 

94000 

1000 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

0.26 0.26 

0.26 0.26 

0.26 0.26 

0.26 

0.26 

0.26 

0.26 0.26 

0.002 0.002 

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

Sr. Name of the At the Beginning of Date wise increase I decrease in shareholding Cumulative At the end of the 
no. Promoters The year specifying reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. Shareholding during year (or on the date 

allotment /transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) the year of separation, if 
separated during 
the vearl 

No of Equity %age to total As on BenP,os No of Equity Reasons No of %age No of %age 
Shares Eq. Shares Date Shares Equity to total Equity to total 

Shares Eq. Shares Eq. 
Shares Shares 

1 Bhushan Power & 
14269146 39.48 

21/07/2017 5000000 Transfer 9269146 25.65 9269146 25.65 
Steel Ltd 

2 Ambey Steel and 
10959675 30.33 10959675 30.33 Power Pvt. Ltd. 

3 Aniket Sinqal 0 0 30/12/2017 4340000 Transfer 4340000 12.01 4340000 12.01 
4 Shivalikview Steel 30/12/2017 94000 Transfer 94000 0.26 94000 0.26 

Trading Private 0 0 
Limited 
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5 Vintage Steel 0 0 30/12/2017 94000 Transfer 94000 0.26 94000 0.26 
Private Limited 

6 Olympian Steel 0 0 
30/12/2017 94000 Transfer 94000 0.26 94000 0.26 

Industries Limited 
7 Titanic Steel 0 0 

30/12/2017 94000 Transfer 94000 0.26 94000 0.26 
Industries Limited 

8 Aromatic Steel 
0 0 

30/12/2017 94000 Transfer 94000 0.26 94000 0.26 
Private Limited 

9 Aarti Iron & Power 
0 0 

30/12/2017 94000 Transfer 94000 0.26 94000 0.26 
Limited .. 

10 30/12/2017 70500 Transfer 70500 0.20 
Rockland Steel 
Trading Private 0 0 19/01/2018 23500 Transfer 94000 0.26 94000 0.26 
Limited 

11 RGF Holiday 30/12/2017 1000 Transfer 1000 0.002 1000 0.002 
Resorts Private 0 0 
Limited 

12 RGF Real Esta te 0 0 12/01/2018 1000 Transfer 1000 0.002 1000 0.002 
Private Limited 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs andADRs ): 

Sr. Name of Shareholder At the beginning of Date wise increase/decrease in Comulative At the end of year (or 
No. the year shareholding specifying reason for shareholding during on the date of 

increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ the year separation, if separated 
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.) during the year) 

For Each of the Top 10 No of %to As on No of Reasons No of %to No of %to 
Shareholders Equity total Benpos Equity Equity total Equity total 

Shares Equity Date Shares Shares Equity Shares Equity 
Shares Shares Shares 

1 Shrim Investment 
Solutions Private Ltd. 1478384 4.09 - - - - 1478384 4.09 

2. Samva Traders Pvt Ltd 204474 0.56 - . . 204474 0.56 

3 Rai Kumar Kedia 181237 0.50 . - . . . 181237 0.50 
4 Indian Bank 147816 0.41 16/06/2017 -2184 Transfer 145632 0.40 145632 0.40 

Stock Holding Corpn of 
5 India Ltd 96672 0.27 . . - . 96672 0.27 

Shrim Investment 
6. Solutions Private Limited 91646 0.25 - - - 91646 0.25 

7 Canara Bank 88776 0.24 28/02/2018 -1200 Transfer 87576 0.24 87576 0.24 

8 Bank of India 83664 0.23 31/01/2018 -21456 Transfer 62184 0.17 

28/02/2018 -168 Transfer 62016 0.17 62016 0.17 
Gurminder Pal Singh 

9. Arneia 47280 0.13 - . - - 47280 0.13 
Stock Holding Corpn of 

10. India Ltd. 41952 0.12 . - . - - 41544 0.11 

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sr. _ Name ofth€l ___ _ Altb_e._B_egirmiog _ _Date wiseiru:;[ease Ldecrease.in __ __ Cumulative _______ . At.the-end-of-the--- -NO~- Shareholder of shareholding specifying reasons Shareholding year (or on the 
the year for increase /decrease (e.g. during the year date of separation, 

allotment /transfer/bonus/sweat if separated during 
equity etc) the year) 

For each of No of %age As on No of Reasons No of %age No of %age 
the Ulf!o<,;cu'"' Equity to total Benpos Equity Equity to total Equity to total 
and KMP Shares Eq. Date Shares Shares Eq. Shares Eq. 

Shares Shares Shares 
1 Saniav Singal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2 Anike! Sinaal 0 0 30/12/2017 4340000 Transfer 4340000 12.01 4340000 12.01 
3 H.C. Verma 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
4 RP. Goyal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
5 Arvind Gup!a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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6 ·~'""'B' 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
,'\watm 

7 M. 144 0 0 0 0 0 0 144 0 
Rarnchandran 

8 Surnlrnn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Aqqa1wal 

9 l\iov Shah 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
10 Di1(~eraj 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Kumar 
V. INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

·1:nC!eliieCinessatt:11e·Iie.9ii1 i11119-<>r19·"'~P-~l?.1.~.:Lu:::.?_,.L .... - .. +-------------···------··--··-··-·------1------·---·---+------·--------·---···---·------------~ 

the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid* 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 
Total (i+ii+iii) 

Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year 
i) · Addition 
Ji)' Reduction 

Net Change 

Indebtedness at the 
end of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid * 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

Total(i+ll+lll) 

NIL 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

NIL 

l 97, 79 ,52,405.0 

51,49,01,894.0 
9,92,01,756.0 

41,57,00,138.0 

239,36,52,544.0 

NIL 178,77,88,945.0 
NIL 19,01,63,460.0 
NIL 0.00 
NIL 197,79,52,405.0 

NIL 51,49,01,894.0 
NIL 9,92,01,756.0 

NIL 41,57,00,138.0 

NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

NIL 239,36,52,544.0 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors and/or Manager 

13 

fetal Amount 
i--..,-;---,..--;:-:---,-.,-,---::-::=,.,.-....,( Ru pees) 

2375000 

R'emunera-t10r;--·iJayati10·EycomP'any fiaving-nol:lrofifor·----
inadequate profit as per Section II of Part II of Schedule 

f Companies Act, 2013 Rs. 84 lakhs. 
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SI. Name of Directors Total 
NO. Amount 

Sanjay Aniket R.P. N. Arv ind M. Sumiran 
Sin gal Singal Goyal Awatar Gupta Ramchand ran Aggarwal 

Nil Nil Nil 12000 12000 2000 5000 31000 

12000 12000 2000 5000 31000 

2 

12000 12000 2000 5000 31000 

Remuneration payable by company having no profit or inadequate profit as per 
Section II of Part II of Schedule V of Com anies Act, 2013 Rs. 84 lakhs. 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

SI. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

CEO Company Secretary CFO Total 

1 Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section17(1) ecomthln of 

e-TaxAct,1961 399000 508200 907200 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-Tax Act,1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section17(3)1ncome-Tax Act, 1961 

2 Stock Option , - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - as % of profit - -
5 Others, please specify - -

Tri>tal - 399000 508200 907200 

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal 
---------- -- -- - ------ ----- -Gompanie&Ac+ -Deseription-- - Punisf'1mentl ----- - -f-Ret-Net-Tf--- cmacte,--tt-any-

Compounding fees COURT) (give Details) 
imposed 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Punishn,t>nt NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

· Compoundir19 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
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Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 

Form No. MR·3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

(Sanjay Singal) 
Chairman 

DIN 00006579 

Annexure 2 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

To, 
The Members, 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LIMITED 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by NOVA IRON AND STEEL LIMITED. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a mannerthat provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the Corporate conducts/Statutory Compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the NOVA IRON AND STEEL LIMITED, Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the Audit period 
covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2018 complied with the Statutory Provisions Listed hereunder and the Company has 
proper Board-processes and Compliance-Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the Reporting made 
hereinafter: 

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by NOVA IRON 
AND STEEL LIMITED forthe Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2018, according to the applicable Provisions, if any: 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBIAct'):­

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; No 
such transaction during the financial year 2017-18. 

_____________ (Q_)___llie_Secu.rities_and_Exchange_Board __ oLlndia -(E'rooibillo1+-of-lnsider--+~RegHlat\on&,-1-99-2~-No-suchtransactioo 
during the financial year2017-18. 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
No such transaction during the financial year2017-18. 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999; No such transaction during the financial year 2017-18. 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)Regulations,2008;Nosuchtransaction 
during the financial year 2017-18. 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client; No such transaction during the financial year2017-18. 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and No such transaction during the 
financial year 2017-18. 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; No such transaction during the financial 
year2017-18. 

(vi) Other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company:-
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(i) The Electricity Act, 2003; 
(ii) The Limestone And Dolomite Mines Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1972; 
(iii) Tax laws (Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, and Excise Act,) 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s ), if applicable; 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. 
We further report that 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. Including the Women Director. The changes in the Composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in Compliance with the Provisions of the Act. 
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to Schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on Agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on theAgenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines. 
We further report that property Land, Plant and Equipment includes land measuring 72.95 acre valued at Rs 194.34 Lacs bought by the 
Company in the name of third parties. Transfer of the same in the company's name is yet to be initiated. 
We further report that during the audit period the Company has not done any of the following activities: 
(i) Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/ debentures/sweat equity, etc. 
(ii) Redemption I buy-back of securities. 
(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
(iv) Merger I amalgamation I reconstruction, etc. 
(v) Foreign technical collaborations. 

Place: Chandigarh 

Date: 13/08/2018 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

For Sharma Sarin &Associates 

PARTNER 
P.O. SHARMA 

FCS 2285, CP No. 2692 

ANNEXURE 3 

(FOR THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES) 
1. Regulatory Requirement 

Pursuant Section 178 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, (Act) and rules made thereunder and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("Committee") shall formulate the criteria for 

·-·-- --- ----- ------QetermiAinQ'~fiG<J.tiGAs,.positi.ve.attriOO.tes.m:id.~a-dir~ora00r~oo.to-tM-Soorfla..pgtiGy..r.ela.1in9'tG-- -· 
the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 
The Policy has been framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and based on its 
recommendation, approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The policy may be reviewed by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors. 

2. Purpose 
Remuneration Policy ("Policy") provides a framework for remuneration to be paid to the members of the Board of Directors 
("Board") and Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") of the Company (collectively referred to as "Executives"). The expression 
KMP shall have the same meaning as defined under the provisions of Act. The Policy also provides a framework for 
identification of persons who are qualified to become directors. 

3. Objectives 
3.1 The remuneration policy seeks to enable the company to provide a well-balanced and performance-related compensation 

package, taking into account shareholder interests, industry practices and relevant Indian corporate regulations. 
3.2 The remuneration policy will ensure that the interests of Executives are aligned with the business strategy and risk tolerance, 

objectives, values and long-term interests of the company and will be consistent with the "pay-for-performance" principle. 
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3.3 The remuneration policy will ensure that remuneration to Executives involves a balance between fixed pay and incentive (by 
way of increment/bonus/ promotion/any other form) reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the company and its goals. 

4. Principles of Remuneration and Criteria for determining Remuneration 
4.1 The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors and KMP of the 

quality required to run the company successfully; 
4.2 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 
4.3 Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between short and long 

term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals 
The criteria for determining the remuneration shall be broadly guided by: 

4.4 Skills, 
4.5 Requisite qualification, commensurate with the Job profile 
4.6 characteristics and 
4.7 experience in business, government, academics, technology, human resources, social responsibilities, finance, law etc. and 

in such other areas as may be considered relevant or desirable to conduct the Company's business in a holistic manner and as 
may be decided by Committee. 

4.8 Director should possess high level of personal and professional ethics, integrity and values. They should be able to balance 
the legitimate interest and concerns of all the Company's stakeholders in arriving at decisions, rather than advancing the 
interests of a particular constituency. 

4.9 Directors must be willing to devote time and energy in carrying out their duties and responsibilities effectively. They must have 
the aptitude to critically evaluate management working. 

4.10 In case of other employees other than director, KMP, the criteria will be decided by the HR department. 
5. Remuneration to Executives 
5.1 Executives may be paid remuneration by way of fixed salary and allowances as per Company rules subject to the provisions of 

CompaniesAct, 2013 
5.2 Personal benefits Executives may have access to benefits/perquisites as per the rules and regulations of the Company. 

Executives may also be entitled to retirement benefits such as provident fund, gratuity and/or such other benefits as per the 
rules ofthe Company. 

5.3 The Remuneration of other employees other than Executives will be decided by the HR department of the Company in 
accordance with the skill, qualification and etc. 

6. Remuneration to non-executive Directors 
6.1 Non" Executive Directors may be paid remuneration by way of sitting fee and reimbursement of expenses for participation in 

the Board and other meetings and commission and/or such other payments as may be permitted by the law applicable to such 
payments. Such payments shall be subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

7. Amendments to this Policy 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entitled to amend this policy including any amendment or discontinuation of 
one or more incentive programs introduced in accordance with this Policy. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 

(Sanjay Singal) 
Chairman 

DIN 00006579 

ANNEXURE-4 

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134(3) (M) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS' 
REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2018 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

Steps taken or impact on conservation of All business units are continuously putting in their efforts to improve 
1 energy energy usage efficiencies and increase contributions from renewable 

sources of energy. Energy saving initiatives throughout the plants 
helped the Company in reducing energy cost. 
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Steps taken by the company for utilizing Use of natural light by placing transparent roof and side glass 
2 alternate sources of energy windows in day time for panel manufacturing unit to reach green 

building concepts 

3 Capital investment on energy conservation 
Nil equipments 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION: 

1. 
Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation and In the past five years no new technology 
innovation. has been adopted 

2. 
Benefits derived as a result of above efforts e.g. product improvement, cost 

Not Applicable reduction, product development, import substitution etc. 

3. 
In case of import technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year) following information may be furnished. 

a. Technology Imported Not Applicable 

b. Year of Import Not Applicable 

c. Has Technology been fully absorbed. Not Applicable 

d. 
If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place reason 

Not Applicable 
there of and future plan bf action. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the Presently Company is not exporting its products 

1 year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual in international market. 
Used: NIL outflows. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 

Earned: NIL 

Form No. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

(Sanjay Singal) 
Chairman 

DIN: 00006579 

ANNEXURE-5 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

_ _ _ ______ _______ ___ _____ _ __ _including certainarm'slength_transactions_Underthirdflrmliso thereto _________________________________ _ 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis 

S.N Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms Justification Date(s) Amount Date on which 
the related contracts/ contracts I of the for entering of paid as the special 
party and arrange- arrange- contracts or into such approval advances, resolution was 
nature of ments/ ments/ arrangements contracts or by the if any passed in 
relationship transac- transac- or arrangements Board general meeting 

tions tions transactions or as required 
including the transactions under first 
value, if any proviso to 

section 188 
a b c d e f g h 

Not Applicable 
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis 

Sr. No. Particulars Detail 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 
(a) relationship Common Director holding more than 2% of paid up capital 

(b) Nature of contracts I arrangements I transactions Sale/Purchase/Arrangements 

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions running contract normally for one year 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or At market price as applicable to non related customers. 
transactions including the value, if any Rs. 275 crore 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any 30.05.2016 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/0812017 

(Sanjay Singal) 
Chairman 

DIN: 00006579 

ANNEXURE - 6 

DETAILS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 . 

Relevant Prescribed Requirement 
clause 
u/r 5(1) 
(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 

" median remuneration of the employees of the company 
for the financial year 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration 
of employees in the financial year 

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company 

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of 
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

------------- financial year·~· its comparison with the .,_ • .,..,.,.:._ 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration 

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/0812018 
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Particulars 

Ratio of the remuneration of Shri Hardev Chand Verma, 
Whole Time Director to the median remuneration of the 
employees 27.15:1 

Company Secretary- 9.67% 
Whole Time Director 100.00% 

Nil 

230 

Average increase in remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel (except WTD}- nil 
-ffiierage increase in remuneration of emplo1f8es.other-
than the Managerial Personnel - nil 

The remuneration is as per the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Other Employees of the Company, 
formulated pursuant to the provisions of section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

(Sanjay Singal) 
Chairman 

DIN: 00006579 

--------------------
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Name Salary 
Per 
month 
In Rs. 

Mr. H.C. 250000 
Verma 

Mr. Jyoti 
Shankar 160000 
Sahav 

Mr. Naresh 
68300 

Kumar 

Mr. 
Shrawan 

65000 
Kumar 
Kumbhkar 
Mr.Anil 
Kumar 52650 
Sharma 

Mr. Ajay 
42350 

Shah 

Mr. 
Dlneswar 44165 
Singh 

Mr. 
Surendra 44020 
Ku.Verma 
MrMohit 

40700 
Ghai 
Mr. 
Ashutosh 40000 
Diwakriti 

Place: New Delhi 

Pursuant to Rule 5(2) of Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

Detail of top ten employees in terms of Remuneration drawn 

Designation Nature of qualification date of the age the last 
employment and com men- of such employmen 
whether experience cement of employe t held by 
contractual of the employme e such 
or otherwise employee nt employee 

before 
joining the 
company 

. Bhushan 
Director Contractual Graduation 30.05.2014 65 Power& 

Steel Ltd 

B.Sc. 
Bhushan 

E.D. Contractual 
(Mechanical) 

05.09.2011 65 Power& 
Steel Ltd 

Diploma 
Bhushan 

A.G.M. Contractual 15.07.2008 40 Power& 
(Mechanical) 

Steel Ltd 

Bhushan 
Manager Contractual 

Diploma 
05.06.2014 37 Power& 

(Electrical) 
Steel Ltd 

M.Sc. Bhushan 
A.G.M. Contractual 

(Chemistry) 
29.09.2011 51 Power& 

Steel Ltd 
Vidya & 

CFO Contractual C.A. 06.04.2012 35 Co. 
(Kolkata) 
Raipur 

Dy. Manager Contractual 
Diploma 

10.04.2012 41 
Power& 

(Electrical) Steel Ltd 
rDura) 
Bhushan 

Sr. Manager Contractual B.Sc. (PCB) 01.12.2014 45 Power& 
Steel Ltd 

Dy.Manager Contractual 
B.Tech 

28.07.2012 32 
ISGEC 

(Mechanical) (Naida) 

Asst. Diploma 
Contractual 26.06.2007 37 Manager (Mechanical) 

--------- -- -oate-=--n1oa1201a _______ -----------

ANNEXURE-7 

the Whether any 
percentage such 
of equity employee is 
shares held a relative of 
by the any director 
employee in or manager 
the company of the 
within the company 
meaning of and if so, 
clause (iii) of name of 
sub-rule (2) such director 
above and ormanaaer . 

NIL N.A. 

NIL N.A. 

NIL N.A. 

NIL N.A. 

NIL N.A. 

NIL N.A. 

NIL N.A. 

NIL N.A. 

NIL N.A 

NIL N.A. 

(Sanjay Singal) 
____ _ _ __ Ch<!!itl!l<UL__ _ _____ _ 

DIN:00006579 

Annexure- 8 

Declaration Regarding Compliance by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel with the Code of Conduct 

I hereby confirm that the Company has received declaration of Compliance of Code of Conduct as applicable to them from the senior 
management personnel of the Company and the Members of the Board in respect of the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 
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(H.C. Verma) 
Whole Time Director 

DIN 00007681 
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ANNEXURE-9 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR PURSUANT TO RULES 8 & 9 OF COMPANIES 
(CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 

SN Particulars 

A qrief outline of the company's CSR policy 

including overview of projects or programme 

1 proposed to be undertaken and a reference to 

web-link to CSR policy and projections or 

programme. 

2 
The composition of the CSR Committee 

Average Net Profit of the company for the last 

3 three financial years 

4 
Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the 

amount as in item 3 above) 

5 Details of CSR spent for the financial year 

total amount to be spent for the 
a 

financial year 

b amount spent , if any. 

Manner in which the amount spent 

c during the financial year is detailed 

below 

In case the company has failed to spend the 

2% of Average Net Profit (INR) of last 3 

6 financial years, the company shall provide the 

reasons for not spending the amount in its 

board report 

A responsibility statement of the CSR 
-------

··commif!ee-fnaftfieimpleim-entatioffana 
- ------- ---

7 monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance 

with CSR objectives and Policy of the 

Company 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 

Remarks 

CSR policy, reflecting ethos of the company, broad areas interest and 

overview of activities, proposes rural focus and woman empowerment can 

be reached at http://www.novai ronsteel.coma/pdfs/csr %/20polic y.pdf 

Policy state the list of activities/projects undertaken/to be undertaken in 

future. 

Constitution of the Committee comprises One independent director 

and two executive directors 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil 

Nil 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

The members of the CSR Committee declare that company has 

--forriiu1ateci csR policyTn compliance With-cs_R_ob}ecHvesanciPoffcyot -

the Company and its implements and monitoring is in accordance with 

policy. 

(R. P. Goyal) 
Chairman (CSR Committee) 
DIN 00006595 

21 

For Nova Iron and Steel Limited 

(Sanjay Singal) 
Chairman 

DIN: 00006579 



NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

FormAOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014). 

ANNEXURE-10 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures 

Part A Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 
Company has no subsidiary, hence the information under this part is - NIL 

Part B Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

Name of Joint Venture Bijahan Coal Private Limited 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet date 31/03/2018 

2. Date on which the Joint Venture was associated or acquired 04/05/2015 

3. Share of Joint Venture held by the company on the year end 

No. 500 

Amount of Investment in Joint Venture 5000 

Extent of Holding (in percentage) 5% 

4. Description of how there is significant influence Joint Control 

5. Reason why the Joint venture is not consolidated NA 

6. Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 3357.00 

7 ._ Loss for the year 4500.00 

i. Considered in Consolidation 225.00 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 4275.00 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations Bijahan Coal Private Limited 
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Nil 

For Mehra Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regd. No.00517N 

Sanjay Mehra 
Partner 
Membership No.085389 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 

(H.C. Verma) 
Whole Time Director 

DIN00007681 

(Ajoy Shah) 
Chief Financial Officer 
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ANNEXURE· 11 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

1. Company's Philosophy 

The Company is committed to good Corporate Governance practices. Your Directors endeavour to adhere to the Standards set out 
by .the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI). Your Company is, therefore, complying in all material respects the mandatory 
requirements as explained hereunder. 

2. Board ofDirectors 

a) Composition 

In compliance of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, Board consists of eight Directors, comprising one executive and seven non­
executive Directors out of which four are independent Directors including one woman independent Director. Chairman of the 
Company is non-executive Director. 

b), c), d) Meetings and attendance records of each Director 

During the year five meetings of Board ofDirectors were held on 30/05/2017, 12/08/2017, 13/11/2017 and 12/02/2018 and a 
separate Meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 10/03/2018. The intervening period between the two Board 
Meetings was well within the maximum prescribed period. 

Attendance record of Directors at Board/ Committee/ General Meetings and details of directorship/ committee 
membership/Chairmanship during the year ended 31st March 2018 are given below:· 

Sr. No. Name of Director Category Attendance Particulars No. of Other Directorship and Committee Remarks Member/ Chairmanshio 
No. of Board No. of Board Atten- Other Committee Committee Meetings Meetings dance at Direct- Members('*) Chairmanships ('*) held attended lastAGM ors hips 

1. Sanjay Singal Non-
4 Independent 

1 No 7 1 1 

2. Aniket Singal Non- 4 1 No 0 0 0 
Independent 

3. 
Hardev Chand Non- 4 4 No 1 3 1 
Verma Independent 

4 R.P.Goyal Non- 4 1 No 6 9 5 
Independent 

5. N.Awatar Independent 5 5 Yes 3 4 2 

6. M.Ramachandran Independent 5 2 No 6 0 0 

7. Arvind Gupta Independent 5 5 No 0 4 0 

8. Sumiran Aggarwal Independent 5 5 No 1 4 0 
4 ------ ------ ------- --- -- ---------------- --- -----------

---("*)--Committee here means Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Share Transfer Committee, Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee and CSR Committee. 

e) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 

Mr.Aniket Singal, Non-Executive Director on the Board ofDirectors is the son of Shri San jay Singal, Non-Executive Chairman 
of the Company. The Non-Executive Directors had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company in their 
personal capacity during the year under review. 

f) Number of shares and convertible Instruments held by non-executive directors: Mr.Aniket Singal-4340000 shares 

g) Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors 

All Independent Directors are appriiled/familiarized about the company, its business, industry etc and roles, rights, 
responsibilities of independent Directors, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business model of the 
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company, etc. from time to time. Detailed agenda is provided to all the Directors to take informed decisions and perform its 
functions and fulfill its role effectively. The details of such familiarisation Programmes are disclosed at weblink 
http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Familiarisation%20 Programme%20for%201ndependisent%20Director.pdf. 

Committees of Board of Directors 

3. Audit Committee: 

(a) Brief description of terms of reference 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee as defined under the relevant provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are as under: 

1. Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory 
auditor and the fixation audit fees. 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial' statements before submission to the Board for approval, with particular 
reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of 
clause (5)of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval. 

6. Review and monitor the Auditor's independence, and effectiveness of audit process; 

7. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties. 

8. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 

9. Valwation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary. 

10. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

11. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems. 

-- --- ----1-2.- Review!Ag-the a6equaey~-fttftetion;ifany, ii 1cludi11g the str uctm e of tt 1e inter 11atauo'lt o'epartment;staffing ancr 
seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

13. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

14. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control system of a material nature and reporting the matterto the board. 

15. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

16. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of 
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

17. Reviewing the functioning of Whistle Blower mechanism in the Company. 
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18. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms ofreference of the Audit Committee. 

19. Considering such other matters the Board may specify. 

20. Reviewing other areas that may be brought under the purview of role of Audit Committee as specified in SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, as and when amended. 

(b) Composition, name ofm-ambers and chairpe,rson 

The Company has an Audit Committee and at present the composition of the Committee consists 3 members namely Mr. N 
Awatar, Independent Director, Mr R. P. Goyal, Director and Mr ArvTnd Gupta, Independent Director as its members. Mr. N 
Awatar is Chairman of the Committee and he is independent Director. He is a senior practicing Chartered Accountant. 

(c) Meeting and attendance during the year 

The committee met four times during the year i.e. on 30/05/2017, 12/08/2017, 13/11/2017 and 12/02/2018 and attendance is 
as under. 

Name Designation Meeting Attended 
(No. of Meeting(s) held: 4) 

Mr. N. Awatar Chairman 04 

Mr. R.P. Goyal Member 00 
Mr. Arvind Gupta Member 04 

Representative(s) of the Statutory Auditors normally attends meetings of Audit Committee. 

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

(a) Brief description of terms of reference 

The terms of reference decided by the Board for the functioning of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, interalia, to 
determine Company's remuneration policy, parameters for appointment of directors, key managerial personnel and determine 
remuneration structure performance based as well as the nomination and also covers such functions and scope as prescribed 
under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with allied Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

(b) Composition, name of members and chairperson 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists Mr. N Awatar, Mr. Arvind Gupta and Mrs. Sumiran Aggarwal, independent 
directors as members of the Committee. Mr. N Awatar is the Chairman of the Committee. 

(c) Meeting and attendance)during the year 

The committee has met one time on 12/08/2017 during the year 

(d) Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 6f the Board has laid out the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of 
the Board, its Committees and all the independent directors, in adherence to SEBI (LODR), Regulations 2015. The ___ _ 

--- -- - peifOrmance evaTua!foncrfferiamduCfes-aitenClanceoTcHrectors;adive partTCipaff on in discl.J.ssion~-discussionoftheitem at-- --
length with import latest knowledge of industry and business etc. 

5. Remuneration of Directors: 

(a) All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors 

Mr. Aniket Singal, Non-Executive Director on the Board of Directors is the son of Shri San jay Singal, Non-Executive Chairman 
of the Company. The Non-Executive Directors had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company in their 
personal capacity during the year under review. 

(b) Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors 

Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
Employees; regulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board. The policy provide the criteria and 
qualification for appointment of Directors, KMP, remuneration to them. The Policy is also available on the website of the 
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Companywww.novaironsteel.com in the investor section. (Also refer Annexure 3 of Board's Report). 

The remuneration to the Whole-time Director(s) is paid on the scale determined by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee within the limits approved by the Shareholders at the General Meeting. The Non-Executive, Independent Directors, 
are entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board, its Committees. 

c) Disclosure with respect to remuneration: 

SN- Name of Director Element of Details of Sitting Service Contract . Stock No of 
Remuneration fixed fee Notice period . option shares held 
Package component Paid/ severance fee details, be non 

Payable if any executive 
directors 

1 Mr. H.C. Verma (Whole 2375000 Fixed . Contract for three NIL NA 
Time Director) years. Notice period 

three months. 
Salary in luie of 
notice short of 
agreed period. 

2 Mr. Sanjay Singal - - - - . 4340000 
(Non-Executive 
Director) 

3 Mr. Aniket Singal - . -
(Non-Executive -
Director) 

4 Mr. R.P. Goyal - - - - -
(Non-Executive 
Director) 

5 Mr. N. Awatar - 12000 - -
(Independent Director) 

6 Mr. Arvind Gupta - 12000 - -
(Independent Director) ' 

7 Mr. M Ramchandran - 2000 - 144 
(Independent Director) 

8 Mrs. Sumi ran Aggarwal - 5000 - - -
(Woman Independent 
Director) 

6 STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

(a) Name of non-executive director heading the committee: 

The Committee consists Mr. R.P. Goyal, Director Mr. N. Awatar, Independent Director and Mr. Arvind Gupta. Independent 
Director as members of the committee. Mr. R.P. Goyal is Chairman of the Committee. During the year under review four 
Meetings of Stakeholders Relationship Committee were held on 15.04.2017, 15.07.2017, 16.10.2017, and 15.01.2018. 

(b) Name and designation of compliance officer: 
- ----------- - -------- ------------ - - -- ------- - -- - --- --- ---- - --------- ---- ------- - ------ - --

Mr. Dheeraj Kumar, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer. 

(c) (d),(e) Number of shareholders complaints received so far, Number not solved to the satisfaction of shareholder and 
Number of pending complaints: 

During the year 148 Nos. of complaints were receiveq from various shareholders and all of them have been replied/resolved to 
the satisfaction of the complainants. As on date there is no complaint pending. 

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE 

Share Transfer Committee has been constituted to consider and approve transfer of shares lodged for transfer with RTA. The Share 
Transfer Committee meetings are being held every fortnight. Mr. Sanjay Singal, Director, Mr. R. P. Goyal, Director and Mr. Arvind 
Gupta, Independent Director are the Members of the Committee. Mr. San jay Singal is the Chairman of the Committee. 
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CORPORATE SdCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITIEE 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee constituted pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and CSR Committee recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Act and amount 
of expenditure to be incurred on such activities/programs and .to monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy from time to 
time. Mr. H. C. Verma, Whole Time Director Mr. R. P. Goyal, Director and Mr. NarsingAwatar, Independent Director are the Members 
of the Committee. Mr. R.P. Goyal is the Chairman of the Committee. 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on the weblink of the Company 
http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/CSR%20Policy.pdf. 

7. GENERALBODYMEETINGS 

Sr. No. Last three AGM 2014-15 2015-16 
(a) Location and time, 29.09.2015, 02.30 28.09.2016, 11.00 am 

where last three annual pm at Registered at Registered office 
oeneral meetinQs held; office 

(b) Whether any special (i)Revision of (i)Approval of Related 
resolution passed in the period of Party Transactions 
previous three annual appointment of Mr. 
general meeting H.C. Verma. Whole 

Time Director 
(ii}Approval of 
Related Party 
Transactions 

(c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot-
details of votinq pattern 

(d) Person who conducted the oostal ballot exercise 
(e) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through 

oostal ballot 
(fl Procedure for postal ballot 

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

(a) Quarterly Results: 

2016-17 
27/09/2017 at 11:00am at 
Registered office 

(i) Re-appointment of Sh. H.C. 
Verma as Whole Time Director and 
revision in remuneration 
(ii) Re-appointment of Sh. Narsingh 

"Awatar as Independent Director 
(iii) Re-appointment of Sh. 
Manickam Ramchandran as 
Independent Director 
(iv) Re-appointment of Sh. Arvind 
Gupta as independent Director 
(v) Approval of material related 
party transactions 

No 

NA 
NA 

NA 

Prior intimation of Board Meeting where to consider and approve Unaudited/Audited Financial Results of the Company is 
given to the Stock Exchanges and also disseminated on the website of the Company at www.novaironsteel.com 

{b) Newspapers wherein results normally published: 

The Company normally publishes quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results in Financial Express, English daily, in 
Jansatta, a Hindi daily and Amrit Sndesh, regional daily widely circulated. 

________ (ci_Anywebsite~whemdisplayJUl:_______ _ __________________________________ _ 

Company's website www.novaironsteel.com 

{d) Official news release: 

Official new releases including news on financial results of the company are sent to the Stock Exchange and the same are 
simultaneously hosted on the website of the Company. 

(e) Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: 

All price sensitive information is promptly intimated to the Stock Exchanges before releasing to the Media, other stakeholders 
and uploading on Company website. 

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION: 

a) Annual General Meeting for the year ended 
31st March 2018 

b) Financial year 

27 

27th September, 2018 at 11.00 AM at registered office. 

1st April to 31st March 



c) Dividend payment date 

Dates of Book Closure 

d) The name and address of each stock exchange(s) 
at which the listed entity's securities are listed and 
a confirmation about payment of annual listing fee 
to each of stock exchange(s) 

e) Stock Code 

f) Market Price date- high, low during each month in last 
financial year: 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

No dividend is recommended for the financial year ended 
31st March 2018 

21st September 2018 to 27th September 2018 

Bombay Stock Exchange Payment of Annual Listing 
fee upto 2017-18 has been paid 

513566 

···-······ ·············-······ 

Month High Low Volume 

........ J~!!· Per share) . (Rs. Pe~share) (No. of Shares) 
Apri12017 16.06 11.60 62831 
May2017 15.36 11.40 25072 

----"··--·············- ···-- ·······- ···················----
June2017 15.50 10.45 23603 
July2017 14.00 11.29 22701 
August2017 13.30 8.86 22925 

'Sepiemt:lel-2017 11.25 8.57 29647 
October2017 10.19 7.80 18953 

November2cff7 
···-·--

14.70 9.70 79379 
December 20T7 

······-··· 
13.60 11.80 4657 

JanuarY2o18 12.69 8.64 9982 
February 2018 8.80 7.78 16841 
March2018 10.96 6.73 65548 

g) Performance in comparison to broad-bases BSE sensex : 

h) In case the securities are suspended from trading, the 
director report shall explain the reason thereof; 

. ___ i~ ___ Registrar .ancLshare transfer agents 

j) Share transfer system 
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New Delhi -110020. 
Ph: 011-40450193 to 97 Fax: 011-30857562 

Board has delegated the authority for approving transfer, 
transmission etc. of the Company's securities to Share 
Transfer Committee. The decisions of Share Transfer 
Committee are placed at the next Board Meeting. The transfer 
requests are normally processed within 15 days of receipt of 
documents, if documents are found in order. Shares under 
objections are returned within two weeks. Transfer of shares 
held in physical form can be lodged with Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent at the above mentioned address. 
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k) Distribution of shareholding 
Range No. of Share No. of %age 

holders Shares 

1-500 157972 6586379 18.22 

501-1000 462 328082 0.91 

1001-2000 236 322735 0.89 

2001-3000 95 232741 0.64 

3001-4000 30 105346 0.29 

4001-5000 21 98253 0.27 

5001-10000 29 189626 0.52 

10001 & above 58 28276326 78.24 

Total 158903 36139488 100.00 

(I) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity Demat facility for demat of shares is available of both the National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL). 

As at 31st March, 2018, 29813662 Equity shares out of 36139488 
Equity Shares of the Company, forming 82.50% of the Company's paid 
up capital are held in the dematerialized form. The Company's shares 
are liquid and actively traded on the BSE. 

m) Outstanding global depository receipts or Nil 
American depository receipts or warrants or 
any convertible instruments, conversion date 
and likely impact on equity 

n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange 
risk and hedging activities 

Nil 

o) Plant locations Village Dagori-495224 Belha, Dist! Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh 

p) Address for correspondence First Floor, F-Block, International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, 

New Delhi 110019 

10. OTHERDISCLOSURES: 

a) Related party transactions 

b) 

c) 

The particulars of transactions between the company and its related parties as per the Indian Accounting Standard 24 "Related 
Party Disclosures" are disclosed in Notes to Financial Statements. However these transactions are not likely to have any 
conflict with the Company's interest. All related party transactions are on arms' length price, and are in the ordinary course of 
ousrness ~ Tne-company--nas aaoprea tfarn-eTarecr Party-Transacfion-pi:illc'fwFilCll rs aTsoa-val 1a6fe-onthe we6sHe oT i.he­
company at web Ii nk: http://www. novaironsteel .com/pdfs/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20policy. pdf 

Compliances 

The Company has complied with the material requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other Statutory Authorities on 
matters related to capital markets. No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or 
SEBI or any other Statutory Authorities relating to the above. 

Vigil Mechanism, Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. 

Refer to details of establishment of Vigil/Whistle Blower Policy of Board's Report. The Policy empower any person associated 
with the organisation to file a grievance if he/ she notices any irregularity. No person has been denied access to the Audit 
Committee for any grievance. 
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(d) Detail of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements: 

The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Adoption of Non-Mandatory requirements under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are reviewed by the Board from time to time. 

(e) Web link where policy for determining material subsidiaries is disclosed: Company does not have a Material Subsidiary 
as defined under Regulation 16(1 )(c) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Company shall formulate a policy to determine 
material subsidiary as and when considered appropriate in the future. 

(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transaction: 

weblink:http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20policy.pdf 

(g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: 

Not Applicable 

Auditor Certification on Corporate Governance 

The Company has obtained a Certificate as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 regarding compliance of conditions of 
Corporate Governance and is enclosed asAnnexure at 12. 

Whole Time Director and CFO Certification 

As required under SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, the Certificate of Whole nme Director/ Chief Financial Officer of the Company 
regarding Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2018 is atAnnexure-13. 

Disclosure with respect todemat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: NIL 

Company's Policy on Prohibition of Insider Trading 

The Company has formulated a Policy for Prohibition of Insider Trading to deter the insider trading in the securities of the Company 
based on the unpublished price sensitive information. The policy envisages procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made 
while dealing in the securities of the Company. The full text of the policy is available on the weblink 
http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/lnsider%20Trading%20Policy.pdf. 

Other Useful Information for Shareholders 

Updation of E-mails for receiving notice/documents in e-mode: 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has through its circular issued in 2011, allowed service of documents by companies 
including Notice calling General Meeting(s), Annual Report etc., to their shareholders through electronic mode. 

In accordance of the same, company has been sending notice calling General Meetings, Annual Report and other documents in 
electronic mode to the shareholders on their email addresses who has registered their email address with the Company/RTA and 
theiy may inform the company/RTAin case the shareholders wish to receive the above documents in physical form. 

The shareholders who have not registered their email addresses with the Company are requested to kindly register their e-mail 
addresses with the Company. 

Dematerlllsation of Shares 

Members are advised to consider dematerialization of their shareholding so as to avoid inconvenience involved in the physical 
shares such as mutilation, possibility of loss/misplacement, delay in transit etc. ISIN No. for dematerialisation of Equity Shares is 
INE 608C01026 and Security Symbol in BSE i_:> NOVIS. 

Updci!e }'Our Corres_pondenc_e~ddr~i;l>IE3anKManclat~~rrr<1Jll_cl __ . __ _ .. 

To ensure all communication benefits received promptly, all shareholders holding shares in physical, demat form are requested to 
notify to the Company or their respective DPs, change in their address/bank details/email id instantly by written request under the 
signatures of sole/first joint holder. 

Quote Folio No./DP ID No. 

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to quote their Folio Nos./DP ID Nos., as the case may be, in all correspondence with 
the Company and their E-mail IDs, Contact/Fax numbers for prompt reply to their correspondence. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 
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(Sanjay Singal) 
Chairman 

DIN: 00006579 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

This report is an integral part of the Board'. Report. 

Industry Structure and Development 

According to International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global economy is experiencing a recovery. With favorable market sentiment 
and accommodative financial conditions', global growth is expected to grow at 3.9% r.ate in both 2018 and 2019. IMF has estimated 
India's economic growth at 6.7% in FY'18 and projected a growth of 7.4% for FY'19 on hopes of further boost to investment and 
increased private consumption. The Indian economy, despite rebound in global economy witnessed slowdown in the first half due to 
inter alia the effect of demonetization, Goods and Services Tax (GST} implementation and Non-Performing Assets (NPA) overhang 
in Banks. Central Statistics office (CSO) has estimated lndia'sgrowth at6.6% in FY'18 lowerthan 7.1% in FY'17. 

During the year some of the major over-leveraged companies in the infrastructure, power generation and steel sector were referred 
to National Company Law Tribunal (NCL T) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (/BC). Overall the sectors that company 
operates in remained depressed, adversely impacting the business of the Company. Resolution under IBC and effective monitoring 
of credit quality by Banks is expected to provide stable and favorable markets from FY' 19 onwards. 

Meanwhile, the Company is reorienting its business structure and pursuing new business avenues of trade in commodities etc., 
which will improve the performance of the Company. 

Opportunity 

Significant opportunities of growth exists over the next few years in key sectors such as Steel, Ports, Mining and Power for 
equipment and life cycle services. Encouraging public, private partnership in execution of projects. Liberalizing FOi norm and 
encouraging capital market. Rationalization of taxation both direct and indirect. 

The Government of India has ushered in various reforms in agriculture, manufacturing and services sectors to help the economy 
realize its full potential. Stability in the political environment and the Governments pro-reform approach continued to strengthen the 
confidence of entrepreneurs and investors. The Government 'Make in India' initiative has also encouraged domestic entrepreneurs 
to match global best practices and also attracted FOi. The Make in India initiative is expected to help the country emerge as a hub for 
global manufacturing bellwethers. 

Threat 

Emergence of Global players delivering extended range of products endowed with latest technology. Litigation erupted for various 
terms of tender documents. Rising cost of input coupled with scarcity in supply. Volatility in prices of crude oil in international market. 
Volatility in foreign exchange currency. Weak rupee against USO. 

Segment wise performance 

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing/trading of Iron & Steel, Metals business which is considered the only business 
segment. The turnover of the Company is Rs. 1967. 76 lacs. 

Outlook 

Demand revival, resolution of stressed assets referred to National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT} leading and consolidation is 
expected to boost capacity utilization. New capacities ramp-up are expected in FY' 19 to meet the demand growth. 

·---· __________ _E:c;()11_0111ic_ a_ctivity is2roJEic~ed_1o pi9k_LJp_pac;e in -~O J9,_E)SJ'.>!iJ.C:i<Jlly Lnern erging11'111r.1<_ets_a11d_ Q€lv.EJ.1Qpirig ec:911o_rriic:!>. lriQif!l.s _also 
leading producer of sponge iron with host of coal based units, located in the mineral-rich states of the country. India's production of 
crude steel in FY'18, increased over FY'17. 

Company has established sponge Iron plant 1.5 MTPA, Captive Power Plant 12 MW Company is under process to establishment of 
15MW CFBC Boiler, at village dagori, Ameri, Akbari, Satighat, Tehsil Bihar, Dist! Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh. 

The rapid growth and digital revolution and Government of India's smart city project has promoted the company to start working 
towards new revenue streams, This will enable the company to carry on its business economically and efficiently. 

Others: 

For Risk and Concern, Inter Control System and their Adequacy, Financial Performance with respect to operation performance, 
Material Development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed please refer to Board 
Report. 
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Annexure 12 
CERTIFICATE 

Under Schedule V(E) of 
the SEBI (LOOR) Regulations 2015 

To the Members of 
Nova Iron & Steel Limited 

We have examined the relevant record of Nova Iron & Steel Limited for the purpose of certifying the compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended 31st March 2018. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to procedures 
and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the conditions 
of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended 31st March, 2018. 

(M.S. KADIAN) 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership No. 2416 
C.P No. 3629 

Place: Chandigarh 
Date: 13/08/2018 

To 

CERTIFICATION OF WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR ANO CFO 
(Under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LOOR) Regulations, 2015 

Annexure-13 

The Board of Directors 
Nova Iron & Steel Limited 

We hereby Certify that --
We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year2017'18 and to the best ofourknowledge and belief: 

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading; 
These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations; 

b. to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 2017-18 are fraudulent, illegal or 
violative of the Company's code of conduct; • 

_______ c, __ Weacceptrespansihilityfor_establishingBndmaintainingJnternalcontrolsBndhaw eval• 1ated the-effectiveness-o!the-il'ltel'ruit~trol--- -----­
systems of the Company and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies, if any, in the design or operation of 
the internal control, of which We are aware of and steps have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d. We have also indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee 
There has not been any Significant changes in internal control over the financial reporting during the year 
There has not been any Significant changes in accounting policies during the year except in respect of depreciation and the same 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over the financial reporting. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 13/08/2018 

Ajoy Shah 
Chief Financial Officer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of 
M/s. Nova Iron and Steel Ltd. 

Report on the Standalone Ind-As Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind-AS 
Financial Statements of Mis Nova Iron and Steel Ltd. ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st 
March, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then 
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind-AS 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Ind-AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position , financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of 
the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind-AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules,2015; as amended, and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone 
Ind-AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and 
Standalone are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone 
Ind-AS Financial statements based on our audit. 

- tn-co11ducti11g ou1 ~-weha\te-takeninto--accoontttre­
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 
and matters which are required to be included in the audit 
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there 
under and the order issued under Section 143(11) of the Act 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind-AS Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified u/s 143(1 O) of the Act. These Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind­
AS Financial Statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Standalone 
Ind-AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
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risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind-AS 
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Company's preparation of Ind-AS 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the Standalone Ind-As Financial Statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

(a) Land under Property Plant and Equipment includes land 
measuring 72.95 acre amounting to at Rs 194.34 Lacs 
bought by the company in the name of third parties. 
Transfer of the same in the company's name is yet to be 
initiated. (Refer Note No. 49 of Financial Statement). 

(b) Audited Accounts as per IND AS Were prepared for the 
year ending March 31st 2017 for consolidation purpose 
while the final accounts adopted in AGM were on IGAAP. 
(Refer Note No. 50 of Financial Statement). 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the afore matter 

Other Matter 

The Standalone Ind as financial statement of the Company for 
the year.ended 31st March 2017 Is prepared in accordance 
with Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006, were 
audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants under the 
Companies Act. 2013 who vide their report dated 29th May 
2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements. 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid matter 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind­
AS Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Act, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31'' March, 
2018, and their profit, (incllJcjjr1g_other comprehef'lajve iQCQf!le_)__ 

· their cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(i) As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 
2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of the section 143(11) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said 
Order, to the extent applicable. 

(ii) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that: 

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 



b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books; 

c. the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, 
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow and 
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this 
report, are in agreement with the books of account; 

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind-AS 
Financial Statement comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 
of the act. 

e. on the basis of the written representation received 
from the directors as on 31'' March 2018 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31"' March, 2018 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2)oftheAct; 

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our Separate Report in "Annexure B"; 

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in 
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us; 

i. The Company has disclosed the impacts of 
pending litigations on its financial position in its 
Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements as on 
31'' March, 2018. (Refer to note no 35) 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. 

ii. There were no amounts which were required to 
be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 

For Mehra Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 000517N 
- ---- ------------ --- ------ - -- ------

Sanjay Mehra 
Partner 

M.N. : 085389 

"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' 
REPORT ON THE STANDALONE IND • AS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF M/S. NOVA IRON & STEEL LTD. 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other 
Legal & Regulatory Requirement' of our report of even date to 
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
March31,2018) 

i. In respect of companies fixed assets: 
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(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the 
management in a phased manner, designed to cover all 
the items over a PEilriod of three years, which in our 
opinion, is reasonable and adequate having regard to the 
size of the company and nature of its business. A portion 
of the fixed assets were physically verified by the 
management during the year. According to the 
information & explanation given to us no material 
discrepancies between the books records and the 
physical fixed assets have been noticed. 

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us 
during the course of our audit the title deeds of immovable 
properties are held in the name of the company Except 
Registration of Freehold land amounting to Rs 
1,94,34, 130 is not in the name of the company 

ii. In respect of Inventory: 

The inventory of the Company in its possession has been 
physically verified by the management at reasonable 
intervals. In our opinion the frequency of verification is 
reasonable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, discrepancies noticed on 
physical verification have been properly dealt with in the 
books of account. 

iii. In our opinion and according to information and 
explanations given to us, the company has not granted 
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or 
other parties listed in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. 

iv. In our opinion and according to information and 
e explanations given to us, during the year the company 

has not given any loan, made any investments, given any 
guarantees, or provided any securities covered under 
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

v. To the best of our knowledge and according to information 
and explanations given to us, the company has not 
accepted any deposits during the year and therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the order are not applicable to 

----mecompany:------- -- - - --- --------

vi. To the best of our knowledge, the Central Government 
has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 
Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which have 
been maintained by the company and these have been 
broadly reviewed by us and we are of the opinion that, 
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have 
been made and maintained. However, we have not, nor 
we are required, carried out any detailed examination of 
such accounts and records. 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) According to information and 'explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the books of 
account, and records, the Company has been generally 



regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income­
Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of 
Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory 
dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears 
as at March 31st, 2018 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they become payable, Except the 
cases listed below: 

Name of the statute Amount Current Status 
(In Rs) 

Entry Tax 3,42,44, 72< Not yet paid 
(Including Interest Due) 

Service Tax 21,40,01< Not yet paid 

Employee State Insurance 5,20,55~ Paid On 8th & 9th May 2018 

Provident Fund 15,91,25( Paid On 8th & 9th May 2018 

(b) According to records of the Company, there are no 
undisputed dues outstanding of Custom Duty, Service 
Tax, Gess etc. on account of any dispute, except Sales 
Tax(VAT), Income Tax and Excise Duty, Entry Tax as per 
details given below:-

Name 
of the 
statute 

Excise 
Duty 
Excise 
Duty 

Excise 
Duty 

Income 
Tax 
Income 
Tax 

VAT 

Nature of dues 

Modvat Credit 
Disallowed 

Demand 

Demand 

Demand 

Modvat Credit 
Disallowed 

And Penalty 
lmoosed 

Demand on 
under valuation 

And Penalty 
lmoosed 
Demand 

Demand 

Demand 

Net of Period to which Forum where 
dispute is pending amount paid amount related 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

72.62 Plus A.Y. 2004-05 Appeal filed w'1th Custom 
Excise & Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal, New 
Delhi 

Penalty 

2.90 A.Y. 2007-08 Commissioner Central 
Excise 

57.58 Oct~ 1999 To 1_;omm1ss1oner 01 J....;entra1 
March _ 2004 Excise - Raipur 

126.'10 April - 2007 To vomm1ss1oner o .... en ra 
July-2011 Excise- Raipur 

39.45 March -2014 & Commissioner 
,January-2015 Appeal - Raipur 

81.61 

18.70 

143.38 

2.23 

Oct - 2011 To Commissioner 
June - 2012 Appeal - Raipur 

A.Y. 1994-95 

A. Y. 2007 -08 

A. Y. 2004-05 

Appeal Pending before ITAT. 

Appeal Pending before ITAT. 

Commissioner of 
Commercial Tax. 
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in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not 
taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the 
government and has not issued any debentures. 

ix. To the best of our knowledge and according to information 
and explanations given to us, the company has not raised 
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) or term loans during the 
period under review and hence reporting under clause 3 
(ix) is not applicable to the company. 

x. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
we report that no fraud by the Company or on the 
company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us 
by the management, the managerial remuneration has 
been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

xii To the best of our knowledge and according to information 
and explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi 
Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) is not 
applicable to the company. 

xiii 

xiv 

xv. 

To the best of our knowledge and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, all transactions 
with the related parties are in. compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, where applicable 
and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements, as required by the applicable Indian 
accounting standards. 

During the year the company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year 
under review. Hence the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
during the year under review the company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected to them, and hence provisions of 
Section 192 of the Companies Act 2013, are not 

VAT Demand 0.25 A,Y. 2006-07 Revision PendingwlthAsstt __ Ji_p_pji_cable1olb_e_Compan}l_ ______________ _ 
- ~mwttsSTOfier-orcommerciarrax. ------ -

VAT 

VAT 

Entry 
Tax 

Demand 

Demand 

Tax Demand 

530.60 

594.08 

5.05 

A.Y. 2003·04 Revision filed before Addi. 
Comm. Commercial Tax was 
filed and order was issued in 
favour of the Company Case 
remanded back to AC. 
Commercial Tax 

A.Y. 2004-05 Revision fried before Addi. 
Comm. Commercial Tax was 
filed and order was issued in 
favour of the Company case 
remanded back to A.C. 
Commercial Tax. 

A,Y, 2006-07 Revision Pending with Addi. 
Comm1ss'1oner of Commercial 
Tax 

viii. In our op1n1on and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 
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xvi. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the company is not required to be 
registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 
lndiaAct, 1934. 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 

For Mehra Goel & Co. 
Chart9red Accountants 

FRN : 000517N 

Sanjay Mehra 
Partner 

M.N.: 085389 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S 
REPORT ON THE STANDALONE IND·AS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF NOVA IRON AND STEEL STANDALONE 
INDASLTD. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. ("the Company") as 
of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Standalone Ind-As financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that Standalone Ind as date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
overfinancial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, incl~ding the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, 

- -- - --------£-Offij)iy-wi#l-e#"lieal requiremeftts-8:1"\d-plafl 8:1"\d perform-the----based-nnthe ii 1te1 11al crn 1b ol 0\7er fiJ 1a11cial reporting-criteria-- -------,--
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate established by the Company considering the essential 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
established and maintained and if such controls operated Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 

For Mehra Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 000517N 

Sanjay Mehra 
Partner 

M.N. : 085389 
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BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31st MARCH, 2018 

PARTICULARS 

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 
(b) Capital Work In Progress 
(c) Financial Assets 

Non - Current Investments 
(d) Income Tax Asset (Net) 
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
(f) Other Non Current Assets 

Total Non-Current Assets 

CURRENT ASSETS 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 
(ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 
(iii) Other Current Assets 
Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
(a) Equity Share Capital 
(b) Other Equity 

TOTAL EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
(a) Provisions 
(b) Other Non Current Liabilities 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade Payables 

(b) Provisions 
(c) Other Liabilities 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

Note No. As at As at 
31 .03.2018 31.03.2017 

3 61 9180308 62 93 30 790 
3 262 09 95410 237 05 66 424 

4 14389 689 27 83 ODO 
5 5 93 156 2 11 074 

6 16939 443 14644 202 
7 11 75 51 232 4 36 46 509 

338 96 49 238 30611 81 999 

8 3 87 23 841 613 84 838 

9 8 42 86 924 22 63 681 
10 14 91 819 55 26 010 
11 7 93 51 550 7 35 28 709 

20 38 54134 14 27 03 238 

359 35 03 372 320 38 85 237 

12 36 13 94 880 3613 94 880 
13 - 66738150 - 9 74 11 765 

29 46 56 730 26 39 83115 

14 14509 857 11519419 

15 6 75 57 059 8 37 23 658 

82066916 9 52 43 077 

16 239 36 52 543 197 79 52 406 
17 4 28 85 060 5 53 22 207 
18 34 72 825 20 67 424 
19 77 28 28 298 80 9317 008 
20 39 41 000 -

321 67 79 726 284 46 59 045 

359 35 03 372 320 38 85 237 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements forming an integral part of the Financial Statements 
--- ------- ------ ------------

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board 

For Mehra Goel & Co., (H.C.Verma) (Ajoy Shah) 
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer 
Firm Regn. No. 000517N DIN : 00007681 

(Sanjay Mehra) (R.P.Goyal) (Dheeraj Kumar) 
Partner Director Co.Secretary 
Membership No. 085389 DIN : 00006595 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

PARTICULARS 

I. Revenue from Operations 
II. Other Income 
Ill. Total Revenue (I +II) : 
IV. Expenses: 

Cost of Material Consumed 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in­
Trade and WIP 

Excise Duty on Sales 
Employee Benefit Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation 
Other Expenses 
Expenditure Incurred Under Trial Run Capitalised 
Total Expenses : 

V. Profit Before Tax (Ill - IV) 
VI. Tax Expenses: 

Current Tax 
Tax for Earlier Years 
Mat Credit Entitlement 

Deferred Tax Assets(+) I Liability(-) 

Profit For the Year 

VII. Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
Profit and Loss 
Income Tax relating to Items that will not be 
reclassified to Profit & Loss 

Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit 
and Loss 
Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to 
Statement of Profit & Loss 

VIII. Total Other Comprehensive income, net of Tax 

IX. Total Comprehensive Income : 

X. Earning Per Share {Face Value Rs. 10/-) 
Basic and Diluted 

Note No. 

21 
22 

23 
24 

25 
26 
27 
28 

29 

30 

For the Year 
Ended 

31.03.2018 

19 67 75 684 
1 59 20 051 

21 26 95 735 

2 43 82 007 

7 09 209 
4 46 31 293 
6 77 76 709 
1 01 80 288 
4 2310898 

-
18 99 90 404 

2 27 05 331 

39 41 000 

-
- 39 41 000 

77 785 

22783116 

96 44 043 

• 17 23 544 

78 90 499 

30673615 

0.63 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements forming an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Mehra Goel & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 000517N 

(Sanjay Mehra) 
Partner 
Membership No. 085389 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 

(H.C.Verma) 
Whole Time Director 

DIN : 00007681 

(RP.Goyal) 
Director 

DIN : 00006595 
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For & on behalf of the Board 

For the Year 
Ended 

31.03.2017 

567621153 
1608921 

56 92 30 074 

37 37 58 289 
68 76 572 

3 49 30 945 
41923372 
6 66 26 820 
11859078 
7 75 84 556 

- 7 11 63 024 
54 23 96 608 

2 68 33 466 

- 11 63 286 

2 56 70 180 

2 56 70 180 

0.71 

(Ajoy Shah) 
Chief Financial Officer 

(Dheeraj Kumar) 
Co.Secretary 
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Notes Forms Parts of Standalone Financial Statements 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018 

(I) Equity Share Capital (Amount in Rs.) 
Particulars As at 1st April During the As at 31st During the As at 31st 

2016 year March 2017 year March 2018 

Equity share of Rs. 10 each 36 13 94 880 - 36 13 94 880 36 13 94 880 

(II) Other Equity 

Particulars Total Amount 

As at 1st April 2016 -12 30 81 945 

Changes in accounting policy I prior period errors 

Restated balance as at 1st April 2016 -12 30 81 945 

Profit I Loss for the year 2 56 70 180 

Other Comprehensive income for the year -
As at 31st March 2017 .9 74 11 765 

Changes in accounting policy I prior period errors -
Restated balance as at 31st March 2017 -9 74 11 765 

Profit I Loss for the year 2 27 83 116 

Other Comprehensive income for the year 78 90 499 

As at 31st March 2018 ·6 67 38 150 

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board 

For Mehra Goel & Co., (H.C.Verma) (Ajoy Shah) 
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer 
Firm Regn. No. 000517N DIN : 00007681 

(Sanjay Mehra) (R.P.Goyal) (Dheeraj Kumar) 
Partner Director Company Secretary 
Membership No. 085389 DIN : 00006595 

- Vlace -: New Uelhr- - -- -- - - - -- - -- -- ---- ---- ---- -----

Date : 29.05.2018 
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit I Loss (-) before Tax as per Statement of 
Profit & Loss account 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 

Interest Expenses (Net) 

Operating Profit I Loss(-) before Working Capital Changes 

Adjustment for: 

Increase(-) I Decrease in trade and other receivables 

Increase(-) I Decrease in inventories 

Increase I Decrease(-) in trade and other payables 

Net Cash (Used In) from Operating Activities : A 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment 

Purchase of Investment 

Increase (-)I Decrease in Capital Work in Progress 

Interest Received 

Net Cash (Used In) from Investing Activities : 13 
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activites 

Interest Paid 

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net) 

Net Cash (Used In) from Financing Activities : C 

Net Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents : (A·B·C) : 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year : 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year: 

1 0180288 

67447446 

91907612 

2 26 60 997 

6 04 71 808 

29806 

7 24 42 731 

25 04 28 986 

3 29 263 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

For The Year 
Ended 31.03.2018 

2 27 05 331 

7 76 27 734 

10 03 33 065 

- 12 97 18 423 

• 2 93 85 359 

32 25 72 260 

32 25 72 260 

6 77 76 709 

415700 137 

34 79 23 428 

40 34 191 

55 26 010 

14 91 819 

1 18 59 078 

6 60 45 784 

25416090 

22 14 83 919 

19001 640 

157227 

49 96 614 

30 9167096 

5 81 036 

(Amount in Rs.) 

For The Year 
Ended 31.03.2017 

2 68 33 466 

7 79 04 862 

10 47 38 328 

22 78 98 369 

33 26 36 697 

31 37 39 902 
. 31 37 39 902 

6 66 26 820 

4 91 87 592 

17439228 

14 57 568 

40 68 442 

55 26 010 

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board 

For Mehra Goel & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 000517N 

(H.C.Verma) 
Whole Time Director 

DIN : 00007681 

(Ajoy Shah) 
Chief Financial Officer 

(Sanjay Mehra) (R.P.Goyal) (Dheeraj Kumar) 
Partner Director _______ ~o.~eEl'etary ____ _ ------------ ~moersntp11to:-1>853tl!I _____ ------- ----- -----DJN:-OOOU65!J5 ______ ------- ------

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 
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NOTES FORMING PARTS OF IND AS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS: 

Note -1. General Information: 

Nova Iron & steels Limited ("the company") is engaged in the 
manufacturing I trading of Iron & Steel, Metals, Securities & 
Natural Resources business. The company address of 
principal place of business is Village-Dagori ,Tehsil-Belha, Distt. 
- Bilaspur (Chhatisgarh) 495224. 

Note -2. SlgnlflcantAccounting Policies: 

a) Statement of Compliance 

b) 

c) 

The Ind As Financial Statements have been prepared as a 
going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the section 133 of the 
companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. 

Basis of preparation and presentation 

The Ind As financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for 
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair 
value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in 
the accounting policies mentioned below. Historical cost 
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration 
given in exchange of goods or services. The principal 
accounting policies are set out below:-

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or 
non-current according to the Company's operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Act. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between the acquisition of assets 
for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating 
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current non­
current classification of assets and liabilities. 

Use of estimates and judgments 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

can be reliably measured and it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific 
criteria have been met for each of the Company's 
activities as described below. The Company bases its 
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration 
the type of customer, the type of transactions and the 
specifics of each arrangement. 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the 
goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 
inclusive of excise duty, net of returns and allowances, 
trade discounts, cash discount, volume rebates and value 
added taxes and GST. 

Income from services 

Income from services is recognized by reference to the 
stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the 
reporting period. 

Dividend and interest income 

Dividend income from investments is recognized when 
the shareholders' right to receive payment has been 
established (provided that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably). 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when 
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably. 

For all financial instruments measured either at amortized 
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
interest income is recorded using the effective interest 
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the 

The preparation of Ind As financial statements in expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
conformity with Ind AS requires management to make period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of the 
application of accou.nti~~. poli.cies and the reported financial liability. When calculating the effective interest 

----- _________ jlJl}Q_LJfl_t Qf __ fill1)e_~j1abJIJileSL_JD(;Q~_eL,-;eXpflQS_0_S_aD_d ___ ----f'ate;-the BOl 1 ipai iy eslil I iales-the-expedecf-CasITftOWS-by----
diSCIOSUr~S of contingent assets and liab11it1es at the date considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
of these f1nanc1al statements and the reported amount of instrument but does not consider the expected credit 
revenues and expenses for the years presented· Actual losses. Interest income is included in other income in the 
results may differ from the estimates. Statement of profit or loss. Interest income in respect of 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at financial instruments measured at fair value through profit 
each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting or loss is included in other income. 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the 
estimates are revised and future periods affected. 

d) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable. The Company recognizes 
revenue when the amount of revenue and its related cost 
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e) Leasing 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases. 



The Company as lessee 

Rental expense from operating leases is recognized as 
expenses in the Profit & Loss account on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the 
rentals are structured solely to increase in line with 
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's 
expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are 
recognized in the period in which such benefits accrue. 

f) Foreign Currencies 

Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the Ind As financial statements are 
measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional 
currency'). The financial statements are presented in 
Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional 
and presentation currency. 

Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange 
rates are generally recognized in statement of profit or 
loss. 
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per effective interest method, and other costs that an 
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing offunds. 

h) Employee benefits 

Short-term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary 
benefits that are expected to be settled within the 
operating cycle after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related services are recognised in 
the period in which the related services are rendered and 
are measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be 
paid. 

Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

Liabilities for leave encashment and compensated 
absences which are not expected to be settled wholly 
within the operating cycle after the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related service are 
measured at the present value of the estimated future 
cash outflows which is expected to be paid using the 
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted 
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period 
on Government bonds that have terms approximating to 
the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as 
a result of experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 

Post-employment obligations 

Defined benefit plans 

The Company has defined benefit plans namely gratuity 
for employees. 

Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non­
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are tianslated using the exchange rates at the The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in 
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the 
arising on translation of non-monetary items is defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
recognised in line with the gain or loss of the item that period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated 
gave rise to the translation difference (translation annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit 
differences on items whose gain or loss is recognised in method. 
other comprehensive inc0me or the statement .of profit The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
and loss is also recognised in other comprehensive determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
income or the statement of profit and loss respectively. outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the 
Borrowing Costs reporting period on government bonds that have terms 

-~--- Borrowlng-c6sfs-dlrecUy-altfif:fOla51e-tb-tneacqills1fio-n,----'3-J2PJQXLrnatiog1Qlbe_terms_ofiharelated ohligatiofL __ 

construction or production of qualifying assets, which are T~e net interest cost is calculated by applying the 

g) 

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit 
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are expense in profit or loss. 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of 
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets are deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalization 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of 
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest, which is computed as 
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Re-measurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they 
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are 
included in retained earnings in the statement of changes 
in equity and in the balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss 



i) 

as past service cost. 

Defined contribution plans 

The Company has defined contribution plans for post­
employment benefit namely Employee Provident Fund 
Scheme administered through Provident Fund 
Commissioner and the Company's contribution thereto is 
charged to profit or loss every year. The Company has no 
further payment obligations once the contributions have 
been paid. The Company's contribution to State Plans 
namely Employees' State Insurance Fund and 
Employees' Pension Scheme are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss every year. 

Termination benefits 

A liability for the termination benefit is recognised when 
the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the 
termination benefit. 

Taxation 

Income tax expense. represents the sum of the tax 
currently payable and deferred tax. 

Current tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the 
year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as 
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of 
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 
in other years and items that are never taxable or 
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated 
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences 

j) 
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enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets 
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the 
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are. recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, in which case, the income taxes are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity respectively. 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of 
acquisition or construction, net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
The cost of tangible asset includes purchase cost (net of 
rebates and discounts) including any import duties and 
non-refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs 
on making the asset ready for its intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying 
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a 
separate asset is derecognized when replaced. The other 
repairs and maintenance of revenue nature are charged 
to Statement of Profit & Loss during the reporting period in 
which they have incurred. 

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in Transition to INDAS 

the financial statements and the corresponding tax On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
bases used in the computation of taxable profits. continue with the carrying value of its property, plant and 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for <!11 taxable equipment recognised as at 1st April 2015, measured as 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences and deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. 
incurred tax losses to the extent that it is probable that D . f th d estimated useful lives and 
taxable profits will be available against which those e~~eci~ l~n me 0 s, 
deductible-~ differences can .be.-Utilised,-Sl.icll-- _____ rfil~l _ua_ 11a__im ____ _ 
deferred tax assets and Liabilities are not recognised if The Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Written 
the temporary difference arises from the initial Down Value Method in accordance with applicable 
recognition (other than in a business combination) of Schedule of the Companies Act, 2013. 

assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither The assets' residual values, estimated useful lives and 
thetaxableprofitnortheaccountingprofit. depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at reporting period, with the effect of any changes in 
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable k) Intangible Assets 
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 
be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have ~een enacted or substantively 
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 
initial recognition at cost of acquisition and are stated net 
of accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 



r~ 
' 

The cost of an intangible asset includes purchase cost 
· (net of rebates and discounts), including any import duties 
and non-refundable taxes, and any directly attributable 
costs on making the asset ready for its intended use. 

Transition to INDAS 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of its Intangible Asset 
recognised as at 1st April 2015, measured as per the 
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the Intangible Asset. 

Amortization methods and useful lives 

The Cost of Intangible assets are amortized on a straight 
line basis over their estimated useful life which is as 
follows. Residual Value is considered as Nil in the below 
cases: 

Nature of Assets Life 

Technical knowhow 3years 

Computer software 3years 

The amortization period and method are reviewed at least 
at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the 
asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the 
amortization period is changed accordingly. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an 
intangible asset are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
when the asset is derecognized. 

Impairment ofTangible and Intangible assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews 
the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). 

n) 
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Raw Material is recorded at cost on a first-in, first-out 
(FIFO)basis. 

Stores & spares are recorded at cost on a weighted 
average cost formula. 

Finished goods and work-in-process are valued at raw 
material cost + cost of conversion and attributable 
proportion of manufacturing overhead incurred in bringing 
inventories to its present location and condition. 

By products and scrap are valued at net realizable 
value. 

Machinery spares (other than those qualify to be 
capitalized as PPE and depreciated accordingly) are 
charged to profit and loss on consumption. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale. 

Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions : Provisions are recognized when there is a 
present obligation as a result of a past event and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are determined based on best 
management estimate required to settle the obligation at 
balance sheet date. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are 
disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from 
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only 

Recoverable amount.is the higher of fair value ~ess costs by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
of disposal and value 1n use. In assess1.ng value in use, th~ uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 

____ estimated future. cas_h_Jlovv_s _a_r~_g1i;c:o_uriied __ tQ_tt1E!II_ -u-GOO'lpB:ffy--Of'--a--j5reset\t-obligattoo tnat arises from-past-
present value using a pre-tax disco~nt rate that reflects events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 

(I) 

current market assessments of the time value of money resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of 
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates the amount cannot be made. 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

Capital work in progress 

Administration and general overhead expenses 
attributable to construction of fixed assets incurred till 
they are ready for their intended use are identified and 
allocated on a systematics basis of cost of related assets. 

Contingent asset being a pos$ible asset that arises from 
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company, is not recognized but disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

m) Inventories o) Financial Instruments 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable 
value, less any provisions for obsolescence. Cost is 
determined on the following basis :-
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A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a 
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and 



financial liabilities are recognized when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial 
instruments (other than financial assets and financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 
Subsequently, financial instruments are measured 
according to the category in which they are classified. 

Financial Assets 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently 
measured in their entirety at either amortised cost using 
the effective interest method or fair value, depending on 
the classification of the financial assets 

Classification offinancial assets 

Classification of financial assets depends on the nature 
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at 
the time of initial recognition. 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the 
following measurement categories: 

Those to be measured subsequently at fair value 
(either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss), and 

Those measured at amortised cost 

The classification depends on the entity's business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows. 
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financial assets. 

Cash flow characteristic test: the contractual term of 
the financial asset gives rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

All other financial assets are measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. 

p) Tradereceivables 

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost less provision 
for impairment. 

q) Cash and cash equivalents 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents 
includes cash in hand, cheques and balances with bank. 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current 
liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing 
activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft is 
shown within other financial liabilities in the balance sheet 
and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow 
statement. 

r) Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company assesses impairment based on expected 
credit losses (ECL) model to the following: 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

Financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss 
allowance at an amount equal to: 

The twelve month expected credit losses (expected 
credit losses that result from those default events on 
the financial instruments that are possible within 
twelve months after the reporting date); or 

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is Full life time expected credit losses \expected credit 
measured at amortised cost unless the asset is losses that result from all possible default events 
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the over the life of the financial instrument). 

fair value option: For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or 
Business model test: the objective of the Company's another financial asset that result from transactions that are 
btlsiness--modet-is-to--trotct-the-financiat-asset-to----within-the-scope-oftmtAS-t8;the-eor 11par ry always-measures--
collect the contractual cash flows. the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected 

Cash flow characteristic test: the contractual term of 
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income unless the asset is designated at fair value 
through profit or loss under the fair value option: 

Business model test: the financial asset is held 
within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting cash flows and selling 
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credit losses. 

Derecognition offinanclal assets 

A financial asset is derecognised only when 

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash 
flows from the financial asset or 

Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of 
the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation 
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients 

Foreign exchange gains and losses 

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign 



currency is determined in that foreign currency and 
translated at the exchange rate at the end of each 
reporting period. For foreign currency denominated 
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value 
through profit or loss the exchange differences are 
recognised in profit or loss except for those which are 
designated as hedge instrument in a hedging 
relationship. Further change in the carrying amount of 
investments in equity instruments at fair value through 
other comprehensive income relating to changes in 
foreign currency rates are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 

s) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification of debt or equity 

Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are 
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a 
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the 
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs. 

Financial liabilities 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method or 
at fair value through statement of profit & loss. 

Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or 
services provided to the Company prior to the end of 
financial year which are unpaid. 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of 
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the 
.proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
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currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end 
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and 
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the 
instruments and are recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a 
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency 
and translated at the exchange rate at the end of the 
reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured 
as at fair value through profit or loss, the foreign exchange 
component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and 
is recognised in Statement of Profit Loss. 

Derecognltion offlnancial liabilities 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and 
only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or have expired. 

t) Dividends 

Final dividends on shares are recorded on the date of 
approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

----- amounns recognisearn-sraremenTofProfiti:fi\aI.ossover ___ _ 
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
rate method. 

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when 
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. 

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial 
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any 
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in Statement of Profit Loss. 

Foreign exchange gains or losses 

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign 
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NOTE 3 - PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars Freehold Land Leasehold Land Buildings Plant and Railway Office Furniture & Vehicles Total 
Eauioments Sldina Eauioments Fixtures 

Cost as at 1st April, 46 38 29 408 4 17 75 783 42 22 28 851 176 70 16 552 214 77461 1 64 30 226 2 48 55 084 1 0006228 276 7619 593 
2017 
Additions 29 806 29 806 

Disposals 

Transfers 
Cost as at 31st March, 46 38 29 408 4 17 75 783 42 22 28 851 1767016 552 2 14 77 461 1 64 60 032 2 48 55 084 1 0006228 276 76 49 399 
2018 

Accumulated 17 96 524 337541178 173 27 49 680 18110096 1 52 46 343 2 39 10 147 89 34 834 213 82 88 803 
depreciation as at 1st 
April, 2017 
Charge for the year 5 12 667 49 81 905 32 44 076 8 36 256 2 26 824 1 31139 2 47 422 1 0180288 

Disposals 

Accumulated 23 09 191 34 25 23 083 173 59 93 756 1 89 46 352 1 54 73 167 24041286 91 82 256 214 84 69 091 
depreciation as at 31st 
March, 2018 

Net carrying amount as 46 38 29 408 3 94 66 592 7 97 05 768 31022796 25 31109 9 86 865 813 798 8 23 972 61 9180308 
at 31st March, 2018 

Net carrying amount as 46 38 29 408 3 99 79 259 8 46 87 673 3 42 66 872 33 67 365 11 83 883 9 44 937 10 71 394 62 93 30 790 
at 31st March, 2017 

Capital Work-in-Progress: 

Opening Balance as a 1st April, 2017 2 37 05 66 424 

Add: Additions 25 04 28 986 

Less: Capitalised during the year 

Closing Balance as at 31st March 2018 2620995410 
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PARTICULARS 

NOTE 4: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS : 

Non Trade, Unquoted (At Cost) 

Adarsh Info Tech. P. Ltd., Chandigarh 

2,23,800 Eq. Shares (Prev. Year 2,23,800 Eq. Shares) of Rs. 10/- each 

Prudent Transport Co. Ltd., Chandigarh 

18,000 Eq. Shares (Prev. Year 18,000 Eq. Shares) of Rs. 30/- each 

- Joint Venture (at Cost) 

Bijahan Coal P. Ltd., Chandigarh 

500 Eq. Shares (Prev. Year 500 Eq. Shares) of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 

TOTAL: 

(Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments : Rs. 1,43,89,689 

NOTE 5 : INCOME TAX ASSET (NET) : 

Advance Tax (Net) 

TOTAL: 

NOTE 6 : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) : 

The break up of deferred tax assets and liabilities into major components arising on 
account of timing differences at the year end are as below:-

Openlng Deferred Tax Assets 

Deferred Tax Assets on account of : 

Related to fixed assets 

Amortisation of Expenses 

Disallowance under the Income Tax Act 1961 

Accrued Compensation to Employees 

Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of : 

Allowance under the Income Tax Act 1961 

Deferred Tax Assets (+)I Liabilities(·) During the Year (Op. + Cl.) 

Deferred Tax Liabilities on items Recognised in OCI 

Mat Recoverable 

NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS : 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplying by 
· - lndia'~Domestie-l'ax-Rate:-

Accounting.f rofit before income tax 

Applicable statutory income tax rate 
Tax at applicable tax rate 

Brought forward loss adjustment 

Total Tax expenses (includes differed tax) 
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As at 31st 

March 2018 

1 13 75 886 

30 08 803 

5 000 

1 43 89 689 

5 93156 

5 93156 

37 51 616 

8 70 816 

. 

. 

9 48 601 

77 785 

- 17 23 544 

14833 586 

16939 443 

2 27 05 331 

30.90% 

70 15 947 
69 38 162 

77 785 

Amount In Rs.) 

-

As at 31st 

March 2017 

22 38 000 

5 40 000 

5000 

27 83 000 

2 11 074 

2 11 074 

49 14 902 

10 53 163 

. 

. 

- 1 10 123 

. 11 63 286 

-
1 08 92 586 

14644 202 

------ --

26 83 34 466 

30.90% 

82 91 541 
94 54 287 

·11 63 286 

------
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PARTICULARS 

NOTE 7: OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS: 

Capital Advances 
Security Deposits 
With Government Departments 
Others 

Sub Total: 

Balance With Excise Dept 

TOTAL: 

NOTE 8 : INVENTORIES : 

Raw Materials (at cost) 

Finished Goods (at lower of cost or net relisable value) 

Scrap & Waste (at net relisable value) 

Stores and Spares (at cost) 

Diesel (at cost) 

Packing Material (at cost) 

TOTAL: 

NOTE 9 : TRADE RECEIVABLES : 

Unsecured and considered good 

Trade Receivables 

TOTAL: 

Debts due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally 
or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or private companies 
respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member is Nil. (P.Y. Nil) 

NOTE 10: CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

Cash on Hand 

Cheques , Drafts on Hand 

Balances with Scheduled Banks 

In Current Accounts 

Other Bank Balance 

Deposit with more than 12 Months Maturity 

(Including Interest Accrued) 

(Previous Year Rs. 29450/- under bank lien) 

TOTAL: 

------·NOTE-11--:-ontER-cURRENT-ASSETS : 

(A) Unsecured and considered good 

Advances to Suppliers 

Advances to Employees 

Other Advances : 

Interest Recoverable 

Prepaid Expenses 

Balance of Statutory I Government Authorities 

TOTAL: 

(B) With reference to the Loans and advances due from directors or other officers of 
the company. 
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As at 31st 
March 2018 

10 52 11 538 

1 05 43 587 
38 791 

1 05 82 378 

17 57 316 

11 75 51 232 

27 85 847 

5 10 077 

104940 

3 48 08 057 

1 31 042 

3 83 878 

3 87 23 841 

8 42 86 924 

8 42 86924 

1 51 380 

32 142 

13 08 297 

14 91 819 

2 54 70 054 

1 75 748 

3 86145 

8 58 617 

5 24 60 986 

7 93 51 550 

Nil 

(Amount In Rs.) 

As at 31st 
March 2017 

3 27 68 807 

90 38 408 
81 978 

9120386 

17 57 316 

4 36 46 509 

27 85 847 

33 29 792 

2 16 67 232 

3 3146421 

62216 

3 93 330 

613 84 838 

22 63 681 

22 63 681 

2 11 829 

28 00 642 

24 84 089 

29450 

55 26 010 

2 60 43 127 

2 40 990 

3 57 212 

16 45 944 

4 52 41 436 

7 35 28 709 

Nil 
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(Amount In Rs.) 

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2018 March 2017 

NOTE 12: SHARE CAPITAL: 

(A) Authorised Capital : 

16,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 160 00 00 000 160 00 00 000 

(B) Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital : 

3,61,39,488 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (Previous Year 3,61,39,488 No. of Equity 3613 94 880 36 13 94 880 
Shares of Rs. 10/- each) 

(C) Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the Beginning and at the As at 31st As at 31st 
end of the reporting period: March 2018 March 2017 

Equity Shares: No. Qf Shares No. of Shares 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3 61 39 488 3 61 39 488 

Add: Further Issued during the year Nil Nil 

Outstanding at the closing of the year 3 6139488 3 6139488 

' Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3613 94 880 36 13 94 880 

Add: Further Issued during the year Nil Nil 

Outstanding at the closing of the. year 3613 94 880 36 13 94 880 

(D) There is no (previous year-no) rights, preference and restriction attaching to each class of shares including restriction on 
company I or the distribution of dividend and repayment of capital. 

(E) Thre are nil number of shares (previous year nil) in respect of each class in the company held by its holding/ultimate holding 
their submission I associates. 

(F) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company : As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2018 March 2017 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up No. of Shares No. of Shares 

Mis. Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. 92 69 146 1 42 69 146 

M/s. Ambey Steel & Power Pvt. Ltd. 1 09 59 675 1 09 59 675 

Sh. Aniket Singal 43 40 000 

2 45 68 821 2 52 28 821 

%Held % Held 

M/s. Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. 25.65 39.48 

M/s. Ambey Steel & Power Pvt. Ltd. 30.33 30.33 

Sh. Aniket Singal 12.01 - -
67.99 69.81 

(G) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-Per share. Each holder of Equity share is entitled to 
one vote per share. In the event of Liquidation, the Equity Share holder are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company 
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in the proportion to their shareholding. 

(H) Bonus Shares I Buy Back/ Shares for cosideration other than cash alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts during past five 
years: NIL 

(1) There are no securities (Previous Year No) convertible into Equity I Preferential Shares. 

(J) There are no calls unpaid (Previous Year - No) including calls unpaid by Directors and Officers as on Balance Sheet dated. 

(K) Details of Forfeited shares : No. of Shares I No. of Shares I 
Value Value 

Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each NII NII 
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(Amount In Rs.) 

PARTICULARS As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2018 March 2017 

NOTE 13: OTHER EQUITY: 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at beginning of the year 9 74 11 765 -12 30 81 945 

Add : Profit I Loss(-) for the Year 2 27 83 116 2 56 70 180 

Sub Total: . 7 46 28 649 . 9 74 11 765 

Other Comprehensive Income : 

Opening Balance . . 
Fair Valuation of Investment 92 85 351 . 
Remeausurements of employee benefit obligations 13 94 852 . 
Closing Balance : 78 90 499 . 
Closing Balance at the year end • 6 67 38 150 9 74 11 765 

NOTE 14: PROVISIONS: 
Non Current 

Provision for Gratuity 119 60 029 9210377 

Provision for Compensated Absences 25 49 828 23 09 042 

TOTAL: 14509 857 11519419 

NOTE 15: OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Interest on Entry Tax Payable 9132454 91 32 454 

Service Tax Payable 21 40 012 21 40 012 

Entry Tax Payable 25112268 2 51 12 268 

Water Charges Payable 2 48 22 009 4 60 29 127 

Security Deposits 63 50 316 13 09 797 

TOTAL; 6 75 57 059 8 37 23 658 

NOTE 16: BORROWINGS; 

Unsecured: 

Loans From related Parties 1515879 348 140 74 73 341 

Loans From Other Parties 87 77 73 195 57 04 79 065 

TOTAL: 239 36 52 543 197 79 52 406 

(a) The Loans from related parties are at 12% arid From other parties Loans is 8.00% and 8.50 % P.A Interest respectively 
(l:JnsectJred);-Allthetermloan-are-repayable-ofElemand. --------- -----

NOTE 17: TRADE PAYABLES: 

Trade Payables 4 28 85 060 5 53 22 207 

TOTAL: 4 28 85 060 5 53 22 207 

The Company has not received any information from the vendors regarding their status 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence 
disclosure relating to amount unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid I 
payable under this have not been given. 
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(Amount In Rs.) 

PARTICULARS As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2018 March 2017 

NOTE 18: PROVISIONS: 
Provision for Gratuity 2168632 13 15 354 
Provision for Compensated Absences 13 04193 7 52 070 

TOTAL: 34 72 825 20 67 424 

NOTE 19: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Other Payables 
Liability for Capital Goods I Expenditure 4 74 78 332 4 53 60 029 
Advance From Customer's 68 44 52 662 73 18 42 203 
Excise duty Payable - 4 16 219 
Expenses Payable 88 95 425 18 21 202 
Other Statutory Dues payable 2 67 84 551 2 25 84 854 
Due to Directors 3 77 827 2 58 371 
Employees related Payable 48 39 501 70 34 130 

TOTAL: 77 28 28 298 80 93 17 008 

NOTE 20 : CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES : 

Provision for Income Tax (net of advance income tax) 39 41 000 -
TOTAL: 39 41 000 

PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

NOTE 21: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sales (including excise duty)* 32 41 153 3511 18 208 

Other Operating Income # 19 35 34 531 21 65 02 945 

TOTAL: 19 67 75 684 567621153 

* Excluding Goods & Service Tax 

*Post the applicability of goods and service tax (GST) with effect from July 01, 2017, 
revenue from operations is disclosed net of GST. Accordingly the revenue from 
operations and other expenses for the year ended on March 31, 2018 are not 
comparable with the previous periods presented in the financial statements. 

# Refer Note No 46 
• 

NOTE22:0THERINCOME 

Interest-Income ----ng-203 5 810~6 

Miscellaneous Income 1 55 90 788 10 27 885 

TOTAL: 1 59 20 051 16 08 921 

NOTE 23 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED: 

Opening Stock 21 95 86 756 

Add : Purchases 15 69 57 380 

. 37 65 44136 

Less · Closing Stock - 27 85 847 

TOTAL: . 37 37 58 289 
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PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

NOTE 24 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, 
STOCK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE:-

Inventory at the beginning of the year 

Finished Goods 33 29 792 2 19 59 865 

Stock in Process 16 10 400 

Scrap 2 16 67 232 83 03 331 

2 49 97 024 3 18 73 596 

Less : Inventory at the end of the year 

Finished Goods 5 10 077 33 29 792 

Stock in Process . . 
Scrap 104940 2 16 67 232 

6 15 017 2 49 97 024 

INCREASE (·)I DECREASE IN INVENTORIES 2 43 82 007 68 76 572 

NOTE 25 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES: 

Salaries & Wages 5 23 38 949 5 26 03 984 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 44 50 198 37 21 805 

Staff Welfare Expenses 7 04 396 8 59 437 

5 74 93 543 5 71 85 226 

Less: Transferred to Projects Under Commissioning 12862 250 1 52 61 854 

TOTAL: 4 46 31 293 419 23 372 

NOTE 26 : FINANCE COSTS: 

Interest Expense 20 91 79 820 21 08 86 049 

Less : Transferred to Projects Under Commissioning 14 14 03 111 14 42 59 229 

TOTAL: 6 77 76 709 6 66 26 820 

NOTE 27 : DEPRECIATION : 

Depreciation 1 0180288 1 18 59 078 

TOTAL: 1 01 80 288 1 18 59 078 
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(Amount in Rs.) 

PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

NOTE 28 : OTHER EXPENSES: 

Comseeuption of stores 7 79 517 83 31 661 

Excise Duty Provided on Stock (Net) 4 16 219 15 69 817 

Packing & Forwarding Charges 10 36 057 97 92 914 

Power & Fuel 1 87 12 883 3 45 58 098 

Water Charges 14623 532 2 20 34 250 

Payment to Auditors 

Audit Fees 2 75 000 1 75 000 

Tax Audit Fees 25 000 25000 

Company Law Matters - 100000 

Out of Pocket Expenses 43 918 34 754 

Sub Total: 3 43 918 3 34 754 

Repairs a,nd Maintenance 

Machinery 5 18 833 5 70 665 

Vehicles 17 62 408 20 09 571 

Building 5 80 908 5 53 040 

Legal & Professiot1al Charges 22 54 948 18 00 822 

Rates & Taxes 1115 722 34 97 217 

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 6 07 908 8 63 977 

Advertisement Expenses 81 552 132952 

Printing & Stationery 18 67 600 23 93 933 

Postage ,Telegram & Telephone Exp 27 01 995 25 87 747 

Other Miscellaneous Expenses 20 32 574 22179 

Prior Period Expenses - 1 09 598 

Bank Charges 104406 110221 

~Trector's Sitting Fee 
-------- ------

29 000 17 000 

Commision & Brokerage 1 57 999 8 90 949 

Rebate & Discounts - 2 32 809 

Exchangl!I Fluctuations - 6 40 792 

General Expenses 2 47 269 3 30 046 

Lease Rent 15 16 420 20 01 788 

5 06 59 230 92247167 

Less : Transferred to Projects Under Commissioning 83 48 332 14662611 

TOTAL: 4 2310 898 7 75 84 556 
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(Amount In Rs.) 

PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

NOTE 29 : ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RE-CLASSIFIED TO STATEMENT OF PROFIT & 
LOSS: 

Change in fair V?lue of Investment 1 16 06 689 -
Re-measurement gains I (losses) on defined benefit - 19 92 646 -
TOTAL: 96 14 043 -

NOTE 30 : EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) : 
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit' for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued 
on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares, unless the effect of potential dilutive equity shares is 
antidilutive. 
The following reflects the Income and share data used In the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Profit I (loss) after tax for Calculation of Basic EPS 2 27 83 116 2 56 70 180 
Add : Adjustment for Potential Shares - -
Profit I {loss) after tax for Calculation of Diluted EPS 2 27 83 116 2 56 70 180 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 3 61 39 488 3 6139488 
Effect of dilution : - -
Total weighted average number of shares in calculating diluted EPS 3 6139488 3 6139488 

Nominal value of each ordinary equity share ( Rs. ) 10 10 
Basic Earning per share 0.63 0.71 
Diluted Earning per share 0.63 0.71 

NOTE 31 : SEGMENT INFORMATION : 

The company Is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing I trading of Iron & Steel, Metals, Securities & Natural Resources 
business and also engaged In Investment in commodities I Securities. So accordingly segment report has been disclosed Is as under: 

Segment Revenue 
(a) Manufacturing 2 89 72 312 37 90 14 031 
(b) Investment In commodities I Securities 16 78 03 37'2 18 86 07 122 
(c) others 1 59 20 051 16 08 921 

Total 212695 735 56 92 30 074 
Segment Results 

(a) Manufacturing - 16 10 18 092 - 16 33 82 577 
(b) Investment in commodities I Securities 16 78 03 372 18 86 07 122 
(c) Others 1 59 20 051 16 08 921 

Profit-Before-Tax 2"2TOS-331 21IB3T46li 
Segment Assets 

(a) Manufacturing 3511501837 3 20 38 85 237 
{b) Investment In commodities I Securities 8 20 01 535 -
(c) Others 

Total Asset 359 35 03 372 3 20 38 85 237 
Segment Liability 

(a) Manufacturing 329 88 46 642 2 93 99 02 122 
(b) Investment in commodities I Securities - -
(c) Others 

Total Liability 329 88 46 642 2.93 99 02 122 

Capital employed 29 46 56 730 26 39 83 115 
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(Amount in Rs.) 

PARTICULARS • For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

NOTE 32 : INVENTORY : 
Consumption of Raw Materials & Components has been computed by adding Purchases to the Opening Inventory and 
deducting Closing Inventory as verified physically by Management. 

NOTE 33 : PAYMENT TO AUDITOR (EXCLUDING SERVICE TAX I GST) : 

Audit Fee 2 75 000 1 75 000 

Taxation Matter 25 000 25 000 

Company Law Matters 1 00 000 

Out of Pocket Expenses 43 918 34 754 

TOTAL: 3 43 918 3 34 754 

NOTE 34 : RELATED PARTY TRANSATIONS : 

The list of related parties as identified by the management is as under : 

(I). Key Managerial Personnel I Director Relationship 

1 Sh. Sanjay Singal Director 

2 Sh. Aniket Singal Director 

3 Sh. H.C. Verma Whole Time Director 

4 Sh. Ravi Prakash Goyal Director 

5 Sh. Ajoy Shah Chief Financial Officer 

6 Sh. Dheeraj Kumar Company Secretary 

(II). List of related Companies 

1 M/s Am bey Steel & Power Pvt. Ltd. Promoter Company 

2 M/s Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd Promoter Company 

3 M/s Bijahan Coal Private Limited Joint Venture 

(Ill). Following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the Year 
Ended 31st March 2018. 

Name of the Related Party I Relation Nature of As at 31st March As at 31st March 
Transactions 2018 2017 

1 Mis Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. (Promoter Co.) Sale of Scrap & 2 95 43 073 38133519 
Others 

2 Mis Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. (Promoter Co.) Purchase of Store 13 57 204 86 55 035 
& Machinery 

3 M/s Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. (Promoter Co.) Loan Repaid - 60515681 

4 M/s Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. (Promoter Co.) Interest on Loan 15 10 06 674 16 56 49 328 

-- __ fi__ Sh._1::1.C~VErma(Wholaiime-DJrector~------- ------Dil'ecIDr-- - ---2-3-75-000 ---1~-QQ-l*J(; 
Remuneration* 

6 Sh. Ajoy Shah (Chief Financial Officer) Salary 5 08 200 5 08 200 

7 Sh. Dheeraj Kumar (Company Secretary) Salary 3 99 000 3 81 000 

Closing Balances 

1 Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. Loan Balance 151 58 79 348 140 74 73 341 

2 Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. Advance From 68 39 37 109 73 13 26 650 
Customer 

3 Sh. H.C. Verma (Whole Time Director) Director 3 77 827 2 58 371 
Remuneration* 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent lo those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 
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guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company 
has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties This assessment is undertaken 
each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party 

operates. 

• Remuneration paid to KMP's does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an 
actuarial basis for all the employees together. 

PARTICULARS 

NOTE 35 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS & ASSETS 

(TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) 

(A) Contingent liabilities. 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts(*) 

Income Tax demands under appeal 

Demand showing as per income tax site (**) 

Excise & Service Tax demand under dispute 

Sales Tax (2004-05) Demand under Dispute 

(8) Commitments 

Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account 
and not Provided for 

Other Commitments : 

For the Year 
Ended 

31.03.2018 

80 85 961 

16208 225 

12 40 270 

3 80 86 076 

2 23 000 

7 88 95 115 

(Amount in Rs.) 

For the Year 
Ended 

31.03.2017 

79 22 98 654 

1 62 08 225 

3 95 78 903 

2 23 000 

22 67 43 288 

(*) The Company also, has its own claims I counter claims against these parties as per terms of their respective contracts. In effect 
the Management does not expect any major liability devolve upon the Company on account of these cases. 

The Income - Tax assessments of the Company have been completed upto Assessment Year 2014-2015. The disputed demand 
outstanding up to the said Assessment Year is Rs 162.08 lacs. Based on the decisions of the Appellate authorities and the 
interpretations of other relevant provisions, the Company has been legally advised that the demand is likely to be either deleted or 
substantially reduced and accordingly no provision has been made. 

Besides the above, the amount in respect of claims of interest etc. claimed by the parties cannot be quantified. 

(**) The above demand has been shown based on the Income Tax site for the A. Y. 1995-96 of Rs. 11, 72,234, A.Y. 1997-98 of Rs. 312 
and A.Y. 1998-99 of Rs. 67,724. 

NOTE 36 : FINANCE LEASE : 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
to the lessee.Company has acquired a lease for a period of 99 years which has been acquired over the period of lease. 

NOTE 37 :i!!MJ>t:OYEE BENEFITS 
(I) Defined Contribution Plans, as per Ind -AS 19 Employee Benefits : 

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, as recognised as expense is as under: 

Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 

'Included in Contribution to provident and other funds under Employee Benefits expense (Refer note no. 22) 
(ii) Defined Benefit Plans, as per Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits : 

44 50 198 37 21 805 

The Company has defined benefit plans namely leave encashment I compensated absence and gratuity. The liability for both the liabilities is 
computed using the pro1ected unit credit method by a qualified actuary. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a 
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. 
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PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

Gratuity Leave encashment 

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) : 

Current Service Cost 13 29 738 1178310 12 79 679 15 92 120 

Past Service Cost - -
Net Interest Cost on net defined benefit liability 7 36 801 6 61 405 2 14 278 195943 

Re -measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/ loss - 6 20 496 14 11 842 

Net Benefit expense recognized In statement of profit and loss 20 66 539 18 39715 8 73 461 3 76 221 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income : 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year 2 06 558 - 19 92 646 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest 
expense 
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 2 06 558 19 92 646 
comprehensive income 
Movement In the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation: 
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 1 05 25 731 94 48 638 30 61 112 27 99 190 

Current service cost 13 29 738 1178310 12 79 679 15 92120 

Interest cost 7 36 801 6 61 405 2 14 278 195943 

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/ loss) 19 92 646 2 06 558 6 20 496 1411 842 

Benefits paid 4 56 255 5 56 064 80 552 114 299 

Past service cost 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 14128661 1 05 25 731 38 54 021 30 61 112 

Current Liability (Short term) 21 68 632 13 15 354 1304193 7 52 070 

Non-Current Liability (Long term) 1 19 60 029 92 10 377 25 49 828 23 09 042 

Changes in the plan assets : 

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning 

Interest Income 

Employer's Contribution 

Benefits Paid 

Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest 
expense 

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end -
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations 
Fair value of plan assets as at closing of the year 

Present value of obligation as at closing of the year 1 41 28661 1 05 25 731 38 54 021 30 61112 

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 14128661 1 05 25 731 38 54 021 30 61 112 

- ----------------- ------- - ---- -- ------- ---- ----- ------------------ ------- ------------- -- --- ------ ---- ---------- -- --- -- --- - ----------- - --------- ---- -------

PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 
The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit 
obligations are shown below : 
Discount rate 7.45% 7.00% 

Withdrawal rate (per annum) 10.00% 10.00% 

Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00% 

Mortality rate 100% of IALM(2006-08) 

Rate of Leave Availment 8.00% 8.00% 

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of infiation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, 
such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2018 & 31 March 2017 is as shown below: 
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(Amount In Rs.) 

PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

Discount rate Gratuity Leave encashment 

Change in assumption 0.5 % increase 0.5 % decrease 0.5 % increase 0.5 % decrease 

Impact on defined benefit obligation 4 25121 4 47 356 3 36 534 3 73 067 

Salary growth rate 

Change in assumption 0.5 % increase 0.5 % decrease 0.5 % decrease 0.5 % decrease 

Impact on defined tienefit obligation 4 55 851 4 36 812 3 78 388 3 44 566 

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of 
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. 

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years: 

PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 34 72 825 20 67 424 
Between 2 and 5 years 64 32 397 50 47 878 
Between 5 and 1 O years 80 75 460 64 71 541 

NOTE 38 : FAIR VALUES 
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments. other than those with carrying 
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values: 

PARTICULARS 
As At 31st As At 31st As At 31st As At 31st 

March 2018 March 2017 March 2018 March 2017 

Level of Fair Valuation ·Leval 2 Carrying Value Fair Value 

Financial assets 
Investment 143 84 689 27 78 000 143 84 689 27 78 000 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings: 
Amortised Cost: 

There have been no transfers between level 1 & 3 during the period. 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents. trade receivables, short term loans and advances, short term borrowings, trade payables 
and short term financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between 
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

Thefair value of Investment being unquoted, have been done on NAV method based on the last available audited accounts. 

NOTE 39 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other 

equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to 
maximise the shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the 

requirements-oLfrudinanciaLcovenant~To-mainlain-or-adjwt-the-capital-StrUGture,-the-Gomf}aflY-maY-a(jjt!St-tiIB-divid"".-
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing 

ratio, which is total debt to equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and 
cash equivalents. 

PARTICULARS As At 31st As At 31st 

March 2018 March 2017 

Borrowings 

Long Term ' -
Short Term 239 36 52 543 197 79 52 406 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 14 91 819 - 5526010 
Net debts 239 21 60 724 197 24 26 396 
Equity 29 46 56 730 26 39 83115 
Debt I Equity Ratio 8.12 7.47 
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In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it 
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. 
Breaches in meeting the fi-nancial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been 
no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing' capital during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 
31 March 2017. 

NOTE 40: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES: 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits and 
employee liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal 
financial assets include security deposits, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its 
operations. 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management has assigned the 
responsibility to oversee the management of these risks to its treasury team. The treasury team assesses the financial risks and 
takes appropriate action to mitigate those risks. The treasury team provides assurance to the Company's senior management that 
the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, 
measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below. 

Market risk: 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected 
by market risk include loans and borrowings and security deposits. 

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017. 

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity, other post-retirement 
obligations and other provisions. 

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the 
financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017. 

Interest rate risk : 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Company does not have any non current obligations with floating rate of interest. The Company has floating rate 
of interest in respect of current borrowings. 

(Amount In Rs.) 

PARTICULARS As At As At 
31" March 2018 31" March 2017 

Interest rate Sensitivity Analysis: 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a Inc , I Dec. in Effect on profit Inc , I Dec. In Effect on profit 
reasonable possible change in interest rates on that portion of basis points ___ b_ef_o_re t_a_xes _b_a_sis p_o_ints ____ bef_or_e_t_a __ xe_s __ . 

_ _Joans_and_borrnwings_affectecLWith-allother-vatiables-held-~-------- -- - ~ 

constant, the Company's profit before taxes is affected through 
the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows 

Long Term Borrowings 

Long Term Borrowings 

Short Term Borrowings 

Short Term Borrowings 

50 

- 50 

50 - 1 1 0 09 464 

- 50 1 10 09 464 

The Positive amount represents increase in profits while a negative amount represents decrease in profits. 

50 

- 50 

50 

50 

110 99 266 

1 10 99 266 

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market 
envirenment. · 
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Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company's does not have any foreign currency exposure 

Foreign currency sensitivity 

The company does not have any foreign currency risk so foreign currency sensitivity clause not applicable 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial 
loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, 
including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is being driven by Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are 
defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor 
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data 
of credit losses. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets 
disclosed in the notes. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect 
to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent 
markets. 

in view of subsequent realisation the management believes that the trade receivables on 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are not 
subject to any further credit risk. Accordingly, no new credit losses are being accounted for. 

Balances with banks 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the 
Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each 
counterparty. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's 
potential failure to make payments. 

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 is the 
carrying amounts of balances with banks. 

Liquidity risk 

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of long term bank loans, 
short term borrowings and finance leases etc. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing 
within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile ofthe Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

(Amount In Rs.) 

Particulars 

For the Year ended 31.03.2018 

Long term borrowings (including Current Maturities) 

Short term borrowings 

On demand 

239 36 52 543 

Less than 
3 months 

3 to 12 
months 

-------- ~T~r_a_d~e_p_a_y_a-~b-.1-e_s _______________ ----·---_---<----4--2-8,_85 060 -~-

Other liabilities 

For the Year ended 31.03.2017 

Long term borrowings (including Current Maturities) 

Short term borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

77 28 28 298 

239 36 52 543 81 57 13 358 

197 79 52 406 

5 53 22 207 

80 93 17 008 

197 79 52 406 86 46 39 215 
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1 to 5 > 5 
years years 

Total 

239 36 52 543 

4 28 85 060 

77 28 28 298 

320 93 65 901 

197 79 52 406 

5 53 22 207 

80 93 17 008 

284 25 91 621 
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SIGNIFIFANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumf:)tions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.These include recognition and measurement of financial 
instruments, estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets, valuation 
of inventories, measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units, measurement of employee benefits, 
actuarial assumptions, provisions etc. 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Company continually evaluates these estimates and 
assumptions based on the most recently available information. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

A. Judgments 

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

Operating lease commitments-Company as lessee 

The Company has entered into leasing arrangements wherein the Company is required to pay monthly lease rentals. The 
Compay has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements e.g. lease term,lease 
rental income, fair value of the land, transfer I retention of significant risks and rewards of ownership of land determined the 
lease as operating leases. 

Fianance lease Company as Lessee 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. 

B. Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the. reporting date, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change 
due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur. 

(i) Gratuity benefits 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds, and 
extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based 
on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Future salary increases and pension increases are based 
on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Further details about the assumptions used, including a 
sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 33. 

(ii) Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. 

-------1-------+-~-~--~~hc_e ~~~i1~~~~d~it9f~-ffi~~~d~~~Wa~~b~= a~~~~~~~=~~~::o~i~:~~~~~JJIB-1o_tb~_impairmentcalcuJationbased_, ________ _ 

NOTE:42 

NOTE:43 

NOTE:44 

0 

(iii) Estimates related to useful life of tangible assets 

Depreciation on tangible assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives estimated by the management. 
These rates are in line with the lives prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The management has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of all its assets. The management based upon the 
nature of asset, the operating condition of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, past history of replacement and 
anticipated technological changes, believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful 
lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment. 

During the year no dividend is paid nor proposed by the company 

Events. after the reporting period 

There are no reportable events that occurred after the end of the reporting period. 

Other Additional information pursuant to the provisions of Para 5 of part II of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable I nil. 
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NOTE:45 In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets and non-current investment have a value on realization in the 
ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated. 

NOTE:46 Revenue from operation Includes other operating revenue of Rs 16,78,03,372(P.Y 18,86,07, 122) representing income 
from dealing in commodities and securities which is income other than manufacturing activities. 

NOTE:47 During current reporting period, company has carried out capital work in progress ,expenses related to that has been 
capitalised. The commercial production is yetto be commenced. 

NOTE:48 Amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the company. 
Ind AS 115 ·Revenue from Contract with Customers: 
On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with 
Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the 
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers. 
The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 
•Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period 
presented in accordance with Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 
• Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application 
(Cumulative catch-up approach). 
The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and its effect on the financial Statements. 
Appendix B to Ind AS 21 , Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: 

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 
which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of 
the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. 
The amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of this on the financial 
statements and the impact is not material. 

Note :49 Land under Property Plant and Equipment includes land measuring 72.95 acre amounting to Rs 194.34 Lacs bought by 
the company in the name of third parties. Transfer of the same in the company's name is yetto be initiated. 

Note: 50 Audited accounts as per IND AS Were prepared for the year ending March 31st 2017 for consolidation purpose while the 
final accounts adopted in AGM were on IGAAP. 

Note: 51 The Company's manufacturing operation are shut down since July 2016 for Upgradation .Presently capital work in 
progress relating to upgradation and addition to manufacturing facilities is being undertaken. 

Note: 52 The Financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 29th May 2018. 
Note: 53 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherver considered necessary. 

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board 

For Mehra Goel & Co., (H.C.Verma) 
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director 
Firm Regn. No. 000517N DIN : 00007681 (Ajoy Shah) 

Chief Financial Officer 

(Sanjay Mehra) 
-----------

______ (R.PJ.'i~;i11____ ______ ___ _ -- - -------(Dheeraflfumar) ---·Partner-- -- --------- Director 
Membership No. 085389 DIN : 00006595 Co.Secretary 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of M/s. Nova Iron and Steel Ltd. 

Report on the Ind ·AS Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind -AS 
Financial Statements of Mis Nova Iron and Steel Ltd. ("the 
Holding Company") and jointly controlled entity M/s Bijahan Coal 
Private Limited comprising of Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
31st march 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended and the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and a summary of 
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 
Management's Responsibility for the Ind · AS Financial 
Statements 
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of these consolidated Ind -AS financial statements in 
terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 
(hereinafter referred to as "the Act") that give a true and fair view 
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows and Changes in equity 
of the Holding company including its Jointly controlled entity in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015(as 
amended)under section 133 of the act. The Holding Company's 
Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of 
records including financial information considered necessary for 
the preparation of consolidated Ind ·AS financial statements. 
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and 
its jointly controlled entity are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Holding Company 
and its Jointly Controlled Entity respectively and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies: making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which 
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
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misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the Consolidated Ind -AS 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind -AS Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of Consolidated 
Ind -AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on whether the Jointly controlled entity has an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company's Board.of 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated Ind ·AS financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms oftheir reports 
referred to in sub paragraph (b) of the Other Matters paragraph 
below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

For the previous year ended 31st March 2017 the company had 
not prepared consolidated financial statements as per Ind -AS. 
Hence previous year figures have been reclassified and restated 
in terms of Ind-As 8.(Refer Note No 52 offinancial Statement). 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, 
the aforesaid consolidated Ind ·AS financial statements give the 
information required by the A.ct in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state 
of affairs of the Holding Company and its Jointly Controlled Entity 
as at 31st March, 2018, and their consolidated profit( Including 
other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and 
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

consolidated Ind -AS financial statements by the Directors of the Emphasis of Matter 
_______ Holciing_C_Qm1:1any&safQrasal~L ________ -----{a~---baru:l-tiMef-Propefty--Plaffi-aflfl-E€jllipment--fficltldes-land--------

Auditor's Responsibility measuring 72.95 acre valued at Rs 194.34 Lacs bought by 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
Ind· AS financial statements based on our audit. 

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the audit report 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under 
and the order issued under Section 143(11) of the Act 

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind -AS Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified u/s 143( 10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated 
Ind -AS Financial Statements are free from material 
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the Holding Company in the name of third parties. Transfer 
of th.e same in the Holding Company's name is yet to be 
initiated.(Refer Note No 49 offinancial Statement). 

(b) Standalone accounts as per Ind -AS were prepared for the 
year ending March 31st 2017 for consolidation purpose 
while the final accounts adopted in AGM were on IGAAP. 
(Refer Note No 50 offinancial Statement). 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid 
matter 

Other Matter 

(a) The Standalone Ind -AS financial statements of the Holding 
Company and its jointly controlled entity for the year ended 
31st March 2017 is prepared in accordance with 



Companies (Acc9unting standards) Rules, 2006, were 
audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants under the 
Companies Act. 2013 who vi des their report dated 29th May 
2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements. 

(b) We did not audit the financial statements/financial 
information of jointly controlled entities, M/s Bijahan Coal 
Private limited whose financial statements reflect total 
assets of Rs.1,02,401,total liabilities of Rs 35,260 , net 
assets of Rs 67, 141 as at 31st March, 2018 ,total revenues 
of Rs. 29, 113 and net profit of Rs 4,500 for the year ended 
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. The consolidated Ind -AS financial statements 
also include the Holding Company's share of net profit of Rs 
225 for the year ended 31st March 2018 as considered in 
the consolidated Ind AS financial statement , in respect of 
Jointly controlled entity whose financial statements has not 
been audited by us. These financial statements I financial 
information have been audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and 
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so 
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of jointly controlled entity, and our report in terms of 
sub-sections (3) and(11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far 
as it relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled entity, is based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the 
other auditors and the financial statements/financial information 
certified by the Management 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reeiuirements 

(i) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to 
the extent applicable, that: 

a. We have sought and, except for the possible effect of the 
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion above, 
obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 

----------frem-ettrexamiftatioo-oflhose-books-and-the-reports-ofthe 
other auditor. 

c. Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph above, the reports on the accounts of 
the Holding Company, and its jointly controlled entity 
incorporated in India, audited under Section 143 (8) of the 
Act by the other auditors, as applicable, and have been 
properly dealt with in preparing this report. 

d. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss(lncluding other 
comprehensive income),the Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
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statements. 

e. In our opinion, except forthe effect of the matters described 
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the 
aforesaid consolidated Ind - AS financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

f. The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse 
effect on the consolidated Ind AS financial statement. 

g. On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Holding Company and the reports of the other statutory 
auditors of its jointly controlled entity incorporated in India, 
none of the directors of Holding Company, its jointly 
controlled entity incorporated in India is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

h. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in Annexure A. As per Jointly controlled 
entity audit report, reporting under clause (1) of sub section 
3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting is not 
applicable. 

with respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor's 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to 
us; 

The consolidated Ind-AS financial statements disclosed the 
impacts of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
Ind -AS Financial Statements as on 31st March, 2018. 
(Refertonoteno34) · · 

ii. The Holding Company's and its Jointly Controlled entity did 
not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Holding Company's and its jointly controlled entity 
during the year 31st March2018. 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 

For Mehra Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 000517N 

Sanjay Mehra 
Partner 

M.N. : 085389 



"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S 
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NOVA IRON 
AND STEEL LTD. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding 
Company"). As per Jointly controlled entity audit report 
Reporting under clause ( 1) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting is not applicable. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Board of Directors of Holding Company's management is 
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding 
Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Holding Company's internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Control~ over Financial 
Reporting 

A Holding company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Holding company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Holding company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

-----ethisal-fequiremenls-arnl-f31an-aOO-perierm-the-auditle-Gbtain---c~ts-efinte1nal-cootrfflstate€1-fn-the-Gttffi:anee~-flA--------
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
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Date : 29.05.2018 

For Mehra Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 000517N 

Sanjay Mehra 
Partner 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018 

(Amount In Rs.) 

Particulars Note No. Asal As at 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 3 61 91 80 308 62 93 30 790 
(b) Capital Work In Progress 3 262 09 95 410 237 05 66 424 
(c) Financial Assets 

Non Current Investments 4 14388 046 27 81 132 
(d) Income Tax Asset (Net) 5 5 93 156 2 11 074 
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 16939 443 14644 202 
(f) Other Non Current Assets 7 11 75 51 232 4 36 46 509 

Total Non-Current Assets 338 96 47 595 30611 80 131 

CURRENT ASSETS 
(a) Inventories 8 3 87 23 841 61364838 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 9 8 42 86 924 22 63 681 
(ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 14 91 819 55 26 010 
(iii) Other Current Assets 11 7 93 51 550 7 35 28 709 
Total Current Assets 20 38 54 134 14 27 03 238 

TOTAL ASSETS 359 35 01 729 320 38 83 369 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 36 13 94 880 3613 94 880 
(b) Other Equity 13 - 6 67 39 793 -97413633 

TOTAL EQUITY 29 46 55 087 26 39 81 247 
LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
(a) Provisions 14 1 45 09 857 115 19 419 
(b) Olher Non Current Liabilities 15 6 75 57 059 8 37 23 658 

8 20 66 916 9 52 43 077 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 16 239 36 52 543 197 79 52 406 
(ii) Trade Payables 17 4 28 85 060 5 53 22 207 

(b) Provisions 18 34 72 825 20 67 424 
(c) Other Liabilities 19 77 28 28 298 80 93 17 008 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 39 41 000 

321 67 79 726 284 46 59 045 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 359 35 01 729 320 38 83 369 
--

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements forming an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board 

For Mehra Goel & Co., (H.C.Verma) (Ajoy Shah) 
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer 
Firm Regn. No. 000517N DIN : 00007681 

(Sanjay Mehra) (R.P.Goyal) (Dheeraj Kumar) 
Partner Director Co.Secretary 
Membership No. 085389 DIN : 00006595 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 
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NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31•r MARCH, 2018 

Particulars 

I. Revenue from Operations 

II. Other Income 
Ill. Total Revenue (I +II) : 
IV. Expenses: 

·Cost of Material Consumed 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and WIP 
Excise Duty on Sale 
Employee Benefit Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation 
Other Expenses 
Expenditure Incurred Under Trial Run Capitalised 
Total Expenses : 

Share of Profit/Loss(·) of Joint Venture 

V. Profit Before Tax (Ill - IV) 
VI. Tax Expenses: 

Current Tax 
Tax for Earlier Years 
Mat Credit Entitlement 

Profit For the Year 
VII. Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit and Loss 
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified ta Profit & Loss 
Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 
Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Slatement of Profit & 
Loss 

VIII. Total Other Comprehensive income, net of Tax 

IX. Total Comprehensive Income : 

X. Earning Per Share (Face Value Rs. 10/-) 
Basic and Diluted 

Note No. 

21 

22 

23 
24 

25 
26 
27 
28 

29 

30 

For the Year 
Ended 

31.03.2018 

19 67 75 684 

1 59 20 051 
21 26 95 735 

2 43 82 007 
7 09 209 

4 46 31 293 
6 77 76 709 
1 01 80 288 
4 23 10 898 

18 99 90 404 

225 

2 27 05 556 

39 41 000 

39 41 000 

77 785 
2 27 83 341 

96 14 043 
• 17 23 544 

78 90 499 

3 06 73 840 

0.63 

For the Year 
Ended 

31.03.2017 

56 76 2'I 153 

1608921 
56 92 30 074 

37 37 58 289 
68 76 572 

3 49 30 945 
4 19 23 372 
6 66 26 820 
1 18 59 078 
7 75 84 556 

- 7 11 63 024 
54 23 96 608 

-1313 

26832153 

- 11 63 286 
2 56 68 867 

2 56 68 867 

0.71 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements forming an Integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

(Sanjay Mehra) 
Partner 
Membership No. 085389 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 

(RP.Goyal) 
Director 

DIN : 00006595 
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NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

Notes Forms Parts of Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018 

(i) Equity Share Capital (Amount In Rs.) 
Particulars As at 1st April During the As at 31st During the As at 31st 

2016 year March 2017 year March 2018 

Equity share of Rs.10 each 36 13 94 880 - 36 13 94 880 - 36 13 94 880 

(ii) Other Equity 

Particulars Total Amount 

As at 1st April 2016 -12 30 82 500 

Changes in accounting policy I prior period errors -
Restated balance as at 1st April 2016 -12 30 82 500 

Profit I Loss for the year 2 56 68 867 

Other Comprehensive income for the year -

As at 31st March 2017 -9 74 13 633 

Changes in accounting policy I prior period errors -
Restated balance as at 31st March 2017 -9 74 13 633 

Profit I Loss for the year 2 27 83 341 

Other Comprehensive income for the year 78 90 499 

As at 31st March 2018 -6 67 39 793 

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board 

For Mehra Goel & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 000517N 

(Sanjay Mehra) (H.C.Verma) (Ajoy Shah) 
Partner Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer 
Membership No. 085389 DIN : 00007681 

--

Place : New Delhi 
(R.P.Goyal) 

(Dheeraj Kumar) Director 
Date : 29.05.2018 DIN : 00006595 Company Secretary 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 
(Amount In Rs.l 

Particulars For The Year For The Year 
Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit I Loss (-) before Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 
account 

2 27 05 556 2 68 32 154 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 1 0180288 11859078 

Interest Expenses (Net) 6 7447446 6 60 45 784 

Share of Profit (-)/Loss of Jointly controlled entity -225 7 76 27 509 1 313 7 79 06 175 

Operating Profit I Loss(-) before Working Capital Changes 10 03 33 065 10 47 38 329 

Adjustment for: 

Increase(-) I Decrease in trade and other receivables - 91907612 25416090 

Increase(-) I Decrease in inventories 2 26 60 997 22 14 83 919 

Increase I Decrease(-) in trade and other payables - 6 04 71 808 - 12 97 18 423 19001647 22 78 98 362 

Net Cash (Used In) from Operating Activities : A - 2 93 85 359 33 26 36 691 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Purchase of Property. Plant & Equipment 29 806 1 57 227 

Increase(-) I Decrease in Capital Advances 7 24 42 731 49 96 614 

Increase(-) I Decrease in Capital Work in Progress 25 04 28 988 30 9167096 

Interest Received 3 29 263 - 32 25 72 260 5 81 036 31 37 39 902 

Net Cash (Used In) from Investing Activities : B - 32 25 72 260 31 37 39 902 

c. Cash Flow from Financing Activites 

Interest Paid - 6 77 76 709 6 66 26 820 

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net) 41 57 00 137 4 91 86 592 

Net Cash (Used In) from Financing Activities : C 34 79 23 428 17440228 

Net Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents : (A-B-C) : - 40 34 191 14 57 562 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year : 5526010 40 68 448 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year : 1491819 55 26 010 

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board 

For Mehra Goel & Co., (H.C.Verma) (AjoyShah) 
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer 

---Pirm-Regn. No. 0005171'.r OtN:UOOU7681 
--

(Sanjay Mehra) (R.P.Goyal) (Dheeraj Kumar) 
Partner Director Co.Secretary 
Membership No. 085389 DIN : 00006595 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 
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NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

NOTES FORMS CONSOLIDATED IND·AS PARTS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

Note · 1. Company Information and Basics of Consolidation: 

I) 

II. 

Ill. 

IV. 

Nova Iron & steels Limited ("the company") is engaged in the manufacturing I trading of Iron & Steel, Metals, Securities & Natural 
Resources business. The company address of principal place of business is Village-Dagori, Tehsil-Belha, Bilaspur- Chhatisgarh, 
495224. 

The Consolidated Ind -As Financial Statements (CFS) relates to Nova Iron & Steels Ltd. and Its Jointly Controlled entity M/s 
Bijahan Coal Private Limited. The Accounts are prepared on historical cost convention in accordance with the applicable Ind -As 
and other applicable relevant statues. 

The Ind -As Financial Statement of Joint Venture have been combined by applying proportionate consolidation method on a line 
by line basis on items of assets , liabilities , income and Expenses after eliminating proportionate share of unrealized profits or 
losses in accordance with Ind -As 28 on" Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures". 

The consolidated lnqAS Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company's separate Ind -As 
Financial Statements except as otherwise disclosed in the Notes to Accounts. 

Note -2. SignificantAccounting Policies: 

a) Statement of Compliance 
The consolidated Ind-As Financial Statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 and other'relevant provisions of the Act. 

b) Basis of preparation and presentation 

The consolidated Ind-As financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for 
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting 
policies mentioned below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or 
services. The principal accounting policies are set out below:-

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current according to the holding company and its jointly controlled 
entity operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the holding company and its jointly controlled entity has 
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current cla13sification of assets and liabilities. 

c) Use of estimates and judgments 
The preparation of consolidated Ind-As financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, 
expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these consolidated financial statements and the 
reported amount of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from the estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods affected. 

d) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The holding company and its jointly controlled 
entity recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue and its related cost can be reliably measured and it is probable that fUture 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the holding company and its jointly 

_________ c~o~ntrolled entity activities as described below. The holding com~y and itsjQirit_ly__controlled_enti!y bases its estimate=s~o~n~------­
hislorical resuTls,Takmg into consideration the type of custoinef,tfle type of transactions and the specifics of each arrangement. 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, inclusive of excise duty, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, cash discount, volume rebates and value 
added taxes and Goods and Services Tax. 

Income from services 

Income from services is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. 

Dividend and interest income 

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholders' right to receive payment has been established 
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the holding company and its jointly controlled entity and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably). 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
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the amount of income can be measured reliably. 

For all financial instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest 
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR}. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of the financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the 
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not 
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the Statement of profit or loss is included in 
other income. 

e) Leasing 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

The Company as lessee 

Rental expense from operating leases is recognized as expenses in the Profit & Loss account on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to 
compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the period in which such 
benefits accrue. 

f) Foreign Currencies 

Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's 
functional and presentation currency. 

Transactions anc_I, balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in 
statement of profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate 
at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items is recognised in 
line with the gain or loss of the item that gave rise to the translation difference (translation differences on items whose gain or loss 
is recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of profit and loss is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or the statement of profit and loss respectively. 

g) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until 
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets are 
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest, which is com[)uted as f)er effective in_i?rest method~amL:itber_c_ustsJhaLan_entit¥-incursJn 
----------cconnection with the borrowing of funds. 

h) Employee benefits 

Short· term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled within the operating cycle after 
the end of the period in which the employees renderthe related services are recognised in the period in which the related services 
are rendered and are measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid. 

Other long·term employee benefit obligations 

Liabilities for leave encashment and compensated absences which are not expected to be settled wholly within the operating 
cycle after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows which is expected to be paid using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted 
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the 
related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in profit or loss. 
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Post-employment obligations 

Defined benefit plans 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

The holding company and its jointly controlled entity has defined benefit plans namely gratuity for employees. 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected 
unit credit method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference 
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the. discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair 
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in profit or loss. 

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in 
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of 
changes in equity and in the balance sheet 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost 

Defined contribution plans 

The holding company and its jointly controlled entity has defined contribution plans for post-employment benefit namely 
Employee Provident Fund Scheme administered through Provident Fund Commissioner and the Company's contribution thereto 
is charged to profit or loss every year. The holding company and its jointly controlled entity has no further payment obligations 
once the contributions have been paid. The Company's contribution to State Plans namely Employees' State Insurance Fund and 
Employees' Pension Scheme are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss every year. 

Termination benefits 

A liability for the termination benefit is recognised when the holding company and its jointly controlled entity can no longer 
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit 

I) Taxation 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Currenttax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported In the 
Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that 
are never taxable or deductible. The holding company and its jointly controlled entity current tax is calculated using tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are 
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and 
incurred tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilisee. Such deferred tax assets and Liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the 
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable 

---------------prefitoor-theaeeettffiiftgprofit:------------------------- ----------- ----- -------- ---------------------

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assetto be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the holding company and its jointly controlled entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the income taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity respectively. 
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j) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of tangible asset includes purchase cost (net of rebates and discounts) including 
any import duties and non-refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the holding company and its jointly controlled entity and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognized when replaced. The other repairs and maintenance of revenue nature are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss 
during the reporting period in which they have incurred. 

Transition to INDAS 

On transition to Ind AS, the holding company and its jointly controlled entity has elected to continue with the carrying value of its 
property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as 
the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

The Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Written Down Value Method in accordance with applicable Schedule of the 
CompaniesAct, 2013. 

The assets' residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with 
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

k) lntangibleAssets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost of acquisition and are stated net of accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

The cost of an intangible asset includes purchase cost (net of rebates and discounts), including any import duties and non­
refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use. 

Transition to IND AS 

On transition to Ind AS, the holding company and its jointly controlled entity has elected to continue with the carrying value of its 
Intangible Asset recognised as at 1st April 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed 
cost of the lntangibleAsset. 

Amortization methods and useful lives 

The Cost of Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life which is as follows. Residual 
Value is considered as Nil in the below cases: 

Nature of Assets Life 

Technical knowhow 3years 

Computer software 3years 

The amortization .period and method are reviewed at least at each consolidated financial year end. If the expected useful life of 
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is 

______ derecogQi2'.~d_. ____ _ 

Impairment ofTangible and Intangible assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the holding company and its jointly controlled entity reviews the carrying amount of its tangible 
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates offuture cash flows have not been adjusted. 

I) Capital work in progress 

Administrative and general overhead expenses attributable to construction of fixed assets incurred till they are ready for their 
intended use are identified and allocation on a systematic basis of cost of related assets. 

m) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, less any provisions for obsolescence. Cost is determined on the 
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following basis:-
" 

Raw Material is recorded at cost on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. 

Stores & spares are recorded at cost on a weighted average cost formula. 

Finished goods and work-In-process are valued at raw material cost + cost of conversion and attributable proportion of 
manufacturing overhead incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and condition. 

By products and scrap are valued at 11et realizable value. 

Machinery spares (other than those qualify to be capitalized as PPE and depreciated accordingly) are charged to profit and loss 
on consumption. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

n) Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions : Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined based on best management estimate required to settle the obligation at 
balance sheet date. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the holding company and its jointly controlled entity or a present obligation that arises from past events where 
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

Contingent asset being a possible asset that arises from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, is not 
recognized but disclosed in the financial statements. 

o) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial instruments (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) 
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
are recognized immediately in profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are measured according to the category in which 
they are classified. 

Financial assets 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost using the effective interest 
method or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets 

----c1a-s-slflc:atto-rrolfinancia1a1rsets 

Classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial 
recognition. 

The holding company and its jointly controlled entity classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and 

Those measured at amortised cost 

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows. 

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost unless the asset is designated at fair value 
through profit or loss under the fair value option: 

Business model test: the objective of the holding company and its jointly controlled entity business model is to hold the 
financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows. 
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Cash flow characteristic test: the contractual term of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the 
asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option: 

Business model test: the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting cash 
flows and selling financial assets. 

Cash flow characteristic test: the contractual term of the financial asset gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding .. 

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

p) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less provision for 
impairment. 

q) Cash and cash equivalents 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cheques and balances with bank. Bank overdrafts 
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing activities in the cash flow 
statement. Book overdraft is shown within other consolidated financial liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of operating 
activities in the cash flow statement. 

r) Impairment of Financial Assets 

The holding company and its jointly controlled entity assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (EGL) model to the 
following: 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 

The twelve month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial 
instruments that are possible within twelve months afterthe reporting date): or 

Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the 
financial instrument). 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within 
the scope of Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

Derecognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is derecognised only when 

The holding company and its jointly controlled entity has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset 
or 

Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the 
cash flows to one or more recipients 

Foreign exchange gains and losses 

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the 
exchange rat~~Ub~Efild_ol_e_g_Qb_r_ep_QrtingpeJiQd.EorJJ)Leign_cwiency_denaminatedJinancialassetsmeasuredat-amortised-COSt--------­
or fair value through profit or loss the exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are designated 
as hedge instrument in a hedging relationship. Further change in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at fair 
value through other comprehensive income relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive . 
income. 

s) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classificati?n of debt or equity 

Debt or equity instruments issued by the holding company and its jointly controlled entity are classified as either financial liabilities 
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets. of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the holding company and its jointly controlled entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs. 
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Consolidated Financial liabilities 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method or at fair value through 
statement of profit & loss. 

Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the holding company and its jointly controlled 
entity prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest.rate method. 

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 

The difference between the carrying amount of a consolidated financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
Statement of Profit Loss. 

Foreign exchange gains or losses 

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting 
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised 
in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the 
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at fair value through profit or loss, the 
foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in Statement of Profit Loss. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The holding company and its jointly controlled entity derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's 
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. 

t) Dividends 

Final dividends on shares are recorded on the date of approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

NOTE 3 ·PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS (Amount In Rs) 
Particulars Freehold Land Leasehold Buildings Plant and Railway Office Furniture & Vehicles Total 

Land Equipments Siding Equipments Fixtures 
Cost as at 1st April, 2017 46 3829408 417 75 783 42 22 28 851 176 70 16 552 214 77 461 16430 226 2 48 55 084 10006 228 276 7619 593 

Additions 29806 29 806 

Disposals 

Transfers 

Cost as at 31st March, 46 38 29 408 417 75 783 42 22 28 851 176 70 16 552 214 77 461 16460 032 2 48 55 084 10006 228 276 76 49 399 
2018 

Accumulated depreciation 17 96 524 337541178 173 27 49 680 18110096 15246 343 23910147 89 34 834 213 82 88 803 
as at 1st April, 2017 
Charg<>-for-lhe-y -~-6-1-2-867 --49-81-905 --32-44-6'713 ~8-36-256 --2-2tHl24 --t-:;1-1'.l9 ~-~4r422 --rorso~aa 

Disposals 

Accumulated depreciation 23 09 191 34 25 23 083 173 59 93 756 18946 352 15473167 24041286 91822~6 214 84 69 091 
as at 31st March 2018 

Net carrying amount as at 46 38 29 408 3 94 66 592 7 97 05 768 310 22 796 2531109 9 86 865 813 798 8 23 972 61 91 80 308 
31st March 2018 
Net carrying amount as at 46 38 29 408 3 99 79 259 8 46 87 673 3 42 66 872 33 67 365 11 83 883 944 937 10 71 394 62 93 30 790 
31st March 2017 

Capital Work-in-Progress: 

Opening Balance as a 1st April, 2017 2 37 05 66 424 

Add: Addilions 25 04 28 986 

less: Capitalised during the year 

Closing Balance as at 31st March 2018 2620995410 
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(Amount In Rs.) 
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2018 March 2017 
NOTE 4 : NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS : 

Non Trade, Unquoted (At Cost) 
Adarsh Info Tech. P. Ltd., Chandigarh 11375886 22 38 000 
2,23,800 Eq. Shares (Prev. Year 2,23,800 Eq. Shares) of Rs. 10/- each 
Prudent Transport Co. Ltd., Chandigarh 30 08 803 5 40 000 
18,000 Eq. Shares (Prev. Year 18,000 Eq. Shares) of Rs. 30/-each 
Joint-Venture 
Bijahan Coal P Ltd, Chandigarh 

3 357 3 132 500 Eq. Shares(Prev. year-500, Eq. shares) of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 

TOTAL: 1 43 88 046 27 81132 
(Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments : Rs. 1,43,88,046 

NOTE 5 : INCOME TAX ASSET (NET) : 
Advance Tax (Net) 5 93 156 211 074 
TOTAL: 5 93 156 2 11 074 

NOTE 6: DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) : 
The break up of deferred tax assets and liabilities into major components arising on 
account of timing differences at the year end are as below:-
Opening Deferred Tax Assets 37 51 616 4914 902 
Deferred Tax Assets on account of : 
Related to fixed assets 8 70 816 10 53 163 
Amortisation of Expenses . 
Disallowance under the Income Tax Act 1961 
Accrued Compensation to Employees -
Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of: 
Allowance under the Income Tax Act 1961' 9 48 601 - 110 123 
Deferred Tax Assets (+)I Liabilities (-) During the Year (Op. + Cl.) 77 785 . 11 63 286 
Deferred Tax Liabilities on items Recognised in OCI - 17 23 544 -
Mat Recoverable 1 48 33 586 1 08 92 586 
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS : 1 69 39 443 14644 202 

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplies by India's 
Domestic Tax Rate: 

Accounting Profit before Income Tax 2 27 05 557 26 83 21 53 
Applicable statutory Income Tax Rate " 30.90% 30.90% 
Tax a applicable Tax rate ?Q,16017 82 91 135 
Brought forward Loss ajustment 64 38 232 94 54 421 
Total Tax expenses (includes Differed Tax) 77 785 -11 63 286 

NOTE 7: OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS: 
Capital Advances 10 52 11 538 3 27 68 807 
SeettrityDeposits--------------------------------- --------- --

With Government Departments 1 05 43 587 90 38 406 
Others 38 791 81 978 
Sub Total: 1 05 82 378 9120386 
Balance With Excise Dept 1757316 17 57 316 
TOTAL: 11 75 51 232 4 36 46 509 

NOTE 8 : INVENTORIES : 
Raw Materials (at cost) 27 85 847 27 85 847 
Finished Goods (at lower of cost or net relisable value) 5 10 077 33 29 792 
Scrap & Waste (at net relisable value) 1 04 940 2 16 67 232 
Stores and Spares (at cost) 3 48 08 057 33146421 
Diesel (at cost) 1 31 042 62 216 
Packing Material (at cost) 3 83 878 3 93 330 
TOTAL: 3 87 23 841 6 13 84 838 

78 



NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

Particulars 

NOTE 9 : TRADE RECEIVABLES : 
Unsecured and considered good 
Trade Receivables 
TOTAL: 
Debts due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally 
or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or private companies 
respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member is Nil. (P.Y. Nil) 

NOTE 10: CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
Cash on Hand 
Cheques , Drafts on Hand 
Balances with Scheduled Banks 
In Current Accounts 
Other Bank Balance 
Deposit with more than 12 Months Maturity 
(Including Interest Accrued) 
(Previous Year Rs. 29450/- under bank lien) 
TOTAL: 

NOTE 11 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS : 
(A) Unsecured and considered good 

Advances to Suppliers 
Advances to Employees 
Other Advances : 
Interest Recoverable 
Prepaid Expenses 
Balance of Statutory I Government Authorities 
TOTAL: 

(B) With reference to the Loans and advances due from directors or other officers of 
the company. 

NOTE 12: SHARE CAPITAL: 

(A) Authorised Capital : 
16,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 

(B) Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital : 
· 3,61,39,488 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (Previous Year 3,61,39,488 No. of Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10/- each) 

~~-~--~----~--~~-----~--~~------··-----~~~~~----~--~--·~-~ 

(C) Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the Beginning and at the 
end of the reporting period: 

Equity Shares: 
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Add: Further Issued during the year 
Outstanding at the closing of the year 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Add: Further Issued during the year 
Outstanding at the closing of the year 
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As at 31st 
March 2018 

8 42 86 924 
8 42 86 924 

1 53 380 
32 142 

13 08 297 

-

14 91 819 

2 54 70 054 
1 75 748 

3 86 145 
8 58 617 

5 24 60 986 
7 93 51 550 

Nil 

160 00 00 000 

36 13 94 880 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

No. of Shares 
3 61 39 488 

Nil 
3 6139488 

Amount (Rs.) 
36 13 94 880 

Nil 
3613 94 880 

(Amount In Rs.) 
As at 31st 

March 2017 

22 63 681 
22 63 681 

2 11 829 
28 00 642 

24 84 089 

29 450 

55 26 010 

2 60 43 127 
2 40 990 

3 57 212 
16 45 944 

4 52 41 436 
7 35 28 709 

Nil 

160 00 00 000 

36 13 94 880 

As at 31st 
March 2017 

No. of Shares 
3 61 39488 

Nil 
3 6139488 

Amount (Rs.) 
36 13 94 880 

Nil 
36 13 94 880 
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Particulars As at 31st 
March 2018 

(Amount In Rs.) 

As at 31st 
March 2017 

(D) The company has only one class of quity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity Share is entitled 
to one vote per share. In the event of Liquidation, the Equity Share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the 
company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in the proportion to their share holding. 

(E) Thre are nil number of shares (previous year nil) in respect of each class in the company held by its holding/ultimate holding their 
submission I associates. 

(F) There are nil number of shares (previous year nil) reserved for issue under option and contracts/commitment for the sale of 
Shares I Disinvestment including the terms and amounts. 

(G) Bonus Shares/ Buy Back/ Shares for consideration other than cash allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts during past five 
years: NIL 

(H) There are no securities (Previous Year- No) convertible into Equity I Preferential Shares. 

(I) There are no calls unpaid (Previous Year- No) including calls unpaid by Directors and Officers as on Balance Sheet dated. 

(J) Details of Forfeited shares : 

Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each 

NOTE 13: OTHER EQUITY: 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at beginning of the year 
Add : Profit I Loss (-) for the Year 

Sub Total: 
Other Comprehensive Income : 
Opening Balance 
Fair Valuation of Investment 

Remeausurements of employee benefit obligations 

Closing Balance : 

Closing Balance at the year end 

NOTE 14 : PROVISIONS : 

Non Current 
Provision for Gratuity 
Provision for Compensated Absences 
TOTAL: 

NOTE 15: OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Interest on Entry Tax Payable 
Service Tax Payable 
Entry Tax Payable 

Water Charges Payable 
Security Deposits 

TOTAL: 

NOTE 16: BORROWINGS: 

Unsecured: 
Loans From related Parties 
Loans From Other Parties 

TOTAL: 

No. of Shares I 
Value 

Nil 

- 9 74 13 633 
2 27 83 341 

. 7 46 30 292 

. 
92 85 351 

- 13 94 852 
78 90 499 

. 6 67 39 793 

1 19 60 029 
25 49 828 

14509 857 

913245A 
2140012 

25112268 
2 48 22 009 

63 50 315 
6 75 57 053 

151 58 79 348 
87 77 73 195 

239 36 52 543 

No. of Shares I 
Value 

Nil 

-12 30 82 500 
2 56 68 867 

9 74 13 633 

" . 
. 
. 

. 9 74 13 633 

92 10 377 
23 09 042 

11519419 

q_L32_45A 
2140012 

25112268 
4 60 29 127 

13 09 795 
8 37 23 656 

140 74 73 341 
57 04 79 065 

197 79 52 406 

(a) The Loans from related parties are at 12% and from other parties Loans is 8.00% and 8.50 % p.a. Interest respectively 
(Unsecured). All the loan are repayable of Demand. 
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(Amount In Rs.) 
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2018 March 2017 

NOTE 17: TRADE PAYABLES: 
Trade Payables 4 28 85 060 5 53 22 207 
TOTAL: 4 28 85 060 5 53 22 207 
The Company has not received any information from the vendors regarding their status 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence 
disclosure relating to amount unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid I 
payable under this have not been given. 

NOTE 18: PROVISIONS: 
Provision for Gratuity 21 68 632 13 15 354 
Provision for Compensated Absences 13 04193 7 52 070 
TOTAL: 34 72 825 20 67 424 

NOTE 19 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES : 
Other Payables 
Liability for Capital Goods I Expenditure 4 74 78 332 4 53 60 029 
Advance From Customer's 68 44 52 662 73 18 42 203 
Excise duty Payable 4 16 219 
Expenses Payable 88 95 425 18 21 202 
Other Statutory Dues payable 2 67 84 551 2 25 84 854 
Due to Directors 3 77 827 2 58 371 
Employees related Payable 48 39 501 70 34 130 
TOTAL: 77 28 28 298 80 93 17 008 

NOTE 20 : CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES : 
Provision for Income Tax (net of advance income tax) 39 41 000 
TOTAL: 39 41 000 -

Particulars For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 
NOTE 21 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sales (including excise duty)* 32 41 153 35 11 18 208 
Other Operating Income# 19 35 34 531 216502 945 
TOTAL: 19 67 75 684 56 76 21 153 
* Excluding Goods & Service Tax ,, 

* Post the applicability of goods and service tax (GST) with effect from July 01, 2017, 
revenue from operations is disclosed net of GST. Accordingly the revenue from 
operations and other expenses for the year ended on March 31, 2018 are not 
comparable with the previous periods presented in the financial statements. 

# Refer Note No 46 

NOTE22:0THERINCOME 
Interest Income 3 29 263 5 81 036 
Miscellaneous Income 1 55 90 788 10 27 885 
TOTAL: 1 59 20 051 16 08 921 

NOTE 23 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED: 
Opening Stock . 

- 219586 756 
Add : Purchases - 15 69 57 380 

. 37 65 44 136 
Less : Closing Stock - 27 85 847 
TOTAL: . 37 37 58 289 

81 



NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

(Amount In Rs.) 
Particulars For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

NOTE 24 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK IN PROGRESS 
AND STOCK IN TRADE:· 

Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Finished Goods 33 29 792 2 19 59 865 
Stock in Process 16 10 400 
Scrap 2 16 67 232 83 03 331 

2 49 97 024 3 18 73 596 
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 
Finished Goods 5 10 077 33 29 792 
Stock in Process . . 
Scrap 104940 216 67 232 

6 15 017 2 49 97 024 

INCREASE(-) I DECREASE IN INVENTORIES 2 43 82 007 68 76 572 

NOTE 25 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES: 
Salaries & Wages 5 23 38 949 5 26 03 984 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 44 50 198 37 21 805 
Staff Welfare Expenses 7 04 396 8 59 437 

5 74 93 543 5 7185226 
Less : Transferred to Projects Under Commissioning 1 28 62 250 15261 854 
TOTAL: 4 46 31 293 41923372 

NOTE 26 : FINANCE COSTS: 
Interest Expense 20 9179820 21 08 86 049 
Less : Transferred to Projects Under Commissioning 14 14 03 111 14 42 59 229 
TOTAL: 6 77 76 709 6 66 26 820 

NOTE 27 : DEPRECIATION : 
Depreciation 1 01 80 288 1 18 59 078 
TOTAL: 1 01 80 288 1 18 59 078 

NOTE 28 : OTHER EXPENSES: 
Consumption of Stores 7 79 517 83 31 661 
Excise Duty Provided on Stock (Net) - 4 16 219 - 15 69 817 
Packing & Forwarding Charges 1036057 97 92 914 
Power& Fuel 18712 883 3 45 58 098 
Water Charges 14623 532 2 20 34 250 
Payment to Auditors 
Audit Fees 2 75 000 1 75 000 
Tax Audit Fees 25 000 25 000 
Company Law Matters - 100000 
Out of Pocket Expenses 43 918 34 754 
Sub Total: 3 43 918 3 34 754 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Machinery 5 18 833 5 70 665 
Vehicles 17 62 408 20 09 571 
Building 5 80 908 5 53 040 
Legal & Professional Charges 22 54 948 18 00 822 
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(Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 

0 31.03.2018 31.03.2017' 

Rates & Taxes 1115 722 34 97 217 

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 6 07 908 8 63 977 

Advertisement Expenses 81 552 1 32 952 

Printing & Stationery 18 67 600 23 93 933 

Postage ,Telegram & Telephone Exp 27 01 995 25 87 747 

Prior Period Expenses . 1 09 598 

Bank Charges 104406 110 221 

Director's Sitting Fee 29 000 17 000 

Commision & Brokerage 1 57 999 8 90 949 
Rebate & Discounts 2 32 809 

Exchange Fluctuations 6 40 792 

General Expenses 2 47 269 3 30 046 

Lease Rent 15 16 420 20 01 788 

Other Miscellaneous Expenses 20 32 574 22179 
5 06 59 230 92247167 

Less : Transferred to Projects Under Commissioning 83 48 332 14662611 

TOTAL: 4 23 10 898 7 75 84 556 

NOTE 29 : ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RE-CLASSIFIED TO STATEMENT OF PROFIT & 
LOSS: 

Change in fair value of Investment 1 16 06 689 -
Re-measurement gains I (losses) on defined benefit . 19 92 646 . 
TOTAL: 9614 043 . 

NOTE 30 : EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) : 
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the 
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares, unless the effect of potential dilutive equity shares is antidilutive. 
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Profit I (loss) after tax for Calculation of Basic EPS 2 27 83 341 2 56 68 867 
Add : Adjustment for Potential Shares -
Profit I (loss) after tax for Calculation of Diluted EPS 2 27 83 341 2 56 68 867 
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 3 61 39 488 3 61 39 488 
Effect of dilution : - -
Total weighted average number of shares in calculating diluted EPS 3 61 39 488 3 61 39 488 
Nominal value of each ordinary equity share ( Rs. ) 10 10 
Basic Earning per share 0.63 0.71 

___ Dilvt@(j_fOamiAg-pef-sllafe- - -------------- ---------------------- ------ ---0;03 0:71-

NOTE 31 : SEGMENT INFORMATION : 
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing I trading of Iron & Steel, 
Metals, Securities & Natural Resources business and also engaged in Investment in 
commodities/ Securities. So accordingly segment report has been disclosed is as under: 
Segment Revenue 

(a) Manufacturing 28972313 37 90 14 031 
0 (b) Investment in commodities I Securities 16 78 03 371 18 86 07 122 

(C) Others 1 59 20 051 16 08 921 
Total 21 26 95 735 56 92 30 074 

Segment Results 
(a) Manufacturing 16 10 19 247 16 33 61 711 
(b) Investment in commodities I Securities 16 78 03 371 18 86 07 122 
(c) Others 1 59 21 207 15 88 055 
(c) Share of Profit & Loss(-) of Jointly controlled entity 225 - 1 313 

Profit Before Tax 2 27 05 556 2 68 32 153 
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Particulars For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

Segment Assets 
(a) Manufacturing 351 15 00 194 320 38 83 369 
(b) Investment in commodities I Securities 8 20 01 535 -

(c) Others -
Total Asset 359 35 01 729 320 38 83 369 

Segment Liability 
(a) Manufacturing 329 88 46 642 293 99 02 122 
(b) Investment in commodities I Securities - -
(c) Others -

Total Liability 329 88 46 642 293 99 02 122 
Capital employed 29 46 55 087 26 39 81 247 

NOTE 32 : INVENTORY : 
Consumption of Raw Materials & Components has been computed by adding Purchases to the Opening Inventory and 
deducting Closing Inventory as verified physically by Management. 

NOTE 33 : RELATED PARTY TRANSATIONS : 
The list of related parties as identified by the management is as under : 

(I). Key Managerial Personnel I Director Relationship 
1 Sh. Sanjay Singal Director 
2 Sh. Aniket Singal Director 
3 Sh. H.C. Verma Whole Time Director 
4 Sh. Ravi Prakash Goyal Director 
5 Sh. Ajoy Shah Chief Financial Officer 
6 Sh. Dheeraj Kumar Company Secretary 

(11). List of related Companies 
1 M/s Ambey Steel & Power Pvt. Ltd. Promoter Company 

2 M/s Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd Promoter Company 

3 Mis Bijahan Coal Private Limited Jointly Controlled Entity 

(Ill). Following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the Year 
Ended 31st March 2018. 

Name of the Related Party I Relation Nature of As at 31st March As at 31st March 
Transactions 2018 2017 

1 Mis Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. (Promoter Co.) Sale of Scrap & 2 95 43 073 3 81 33 519 
Others 

2 Mis Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. (Promoter Co.) Purchase of Store 1357204 86 55 035 
& Machinerv 

-3- M/s-Bhushan Power & Steel l:td. (Promoter eo.) toan--Repaict- - 6 05 15 681 
4 M/s Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. (Promoter Co.) Interest on Loan 151006674 16 56 49 328 

5 Sh. H.C. Verma (Whole nme Director) Director 23 75 000 15 00 000 
Remuneration* 

6 Sh. Ajoy Shah (Chief Financial Officer) Salary 5 08 200 5 08 200 
7 Sh. Dheeraj Kumar (Company Secretary) Salary 3 99 000 3 81 000 

Closing Balances 

1 Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. Loan Balance 1515879348 140 74 73 341 

2 Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. Advance From 68 39 37 109 73 13 26 650 
(', ·-·----

3 Sh. H.C. Verma (Whole Time Director) Director 
3 77 827 2 58 371 Remuneration* 
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company 
has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties This assessment is undertaken 
each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party 
operates. 

• Remuneration paid to KMP's does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an 
actuarial basis for all the employees together. 

(Amount in Rs.) 
Particulars For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

NOTE 34 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS & ASSETS 
(TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) 
(A) Contingent liabilities. 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts(*) 80 85 961 79 22 98 654 

Income Tax demands under appeal 1 62 08 225 16208 225 
Excise & Service Tax Demand under Dispute 3 80 76 076 3 95 78 903 

Demand showing as per Income Tax Site(**) 12 40 270 -
Sales Tax (2004-05) Demand under Dispute 2 23 000 2 23 000 

(B) Commitments 
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account 7 88 95 115 22 67 43 288 
and not Provided for 

Other Commitments : 

(*) The Company also, has its own claims I counter claims against these parties as per terms of their respective contracts. In effect 
the Management does not expect any major liability devolve upon the Company on account of these cases. 
The Income - Tax assessments of the Company have been completed upto Assessment Year 2014-2015. The disputed demand 
outstanding up to the said Assessment Year is Rs 162.08 lacs. Based on the decisions of the Appellate authorities and the 
interpretations of other relevant provisions, the Company has been legally advised that the demand is likely to be either deleted or 
substantially reduced and accordingly no provision has been made. · 

Besides the above, the amount in respect of claims of interest etc. claimed by the parties cannot be quantified. 

(**)Above demand has been shown based on the income tax site for A.Y 1995 96 of Rs. 11,72,234, A.Y 1997 - 98 of Rs. 312 and 
A.Y 1998 - 99 of Rs. 67,724. 

NOTE 35 : FINANCE LEASE : 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
to the lessee.Company has acquired a lease for a period of 99 years which has been acquired over the period of lease. 

(Amount in Rs.) 
Particulars For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

NOTE 36 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
(i) Defined Contribution Plans, as per Ind ·AS 19 Employee Benefits : 
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, as recognised as expense is as under: 
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 44 50 198 37 21 805 
• Included in Contribution to provident and other funds under Employee Benefits expense (Refer note no. 22) 
(ii) Defined Benefit Plans, as per Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits : 
The Company has defined benefit plans namely leave encashment I compensated absence and gratuity. The liability for both 
the liabilities is computed using the projected unit credit method by a qualified actuary. Every employee who has completed 
five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of 
service. 
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PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

Gratuity Leave encashment 

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee 
Cost): 

Current Service Cost 13 29 738 1178310 12 79 679 15 92 120 

Past Service Cost - - -
Net Interest Cost on net defined benefit liability 7 36 801 6 61 405 2 14 278 195943 

Re -measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/ loss - - 6 20 496 14 11 842 

Net Benefit expense recognized in statement of profit and 20 66 539 18 39 715 8 73 461 3 76 221 
loss 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income : 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year 2 06 558 - 19 92 646 - -
Return on plan assets, exclud,ing amount recognised in net -
interest expense 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 2 06 558 - 19 92 646 - -
comprehensive income 

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation : 
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 1 05 25 731 94 48 638 30 61 112 27 99 190 
Current service cost 13 29 738 1178310 12 79 679 15 92 120 

Interest cost 7 36 801 6 61 405 2 14 278 1 95 943 
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/ loss) 19 92 646 - 2 06 558 - 6 20 496 - 14 11 842 

Benefits paid 4 56 255 5 5.6 064 80 552 114 299 
Past service cost 
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 1 41 28 661 10525 731 38 54 021 30 61 112 
Current Liability {Short term) 2168632 13 15 354 13 04 193 7 52 070 
Non-Current Liability (Long term) 1 19 60 029 92 10 377 25 49 828 23 09 042 
Changes in the plan assets : 
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning - - - -
Interest Income - -
Employer's Contribution -
Benefits Paid - - - -
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net -
interest expense 
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end - -
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations 
Fair value of plan assets as at closing of the year 
Present value of obligation as at closing of the year 1 41 28 661 1 05 25 731 38 54 021 3061112 
fl.mounnecognizea-rnHalance Sneet 1 41 28 661 1 05 25 731 38 54 021 30 61 112 

(Amount in Rs.) 
Particulars For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligations are shown below : 
Discount rate 7.45% 7.00% 
Withdrawal rate (per annum) 10.00% 10.00% 
Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00% 
Mortality rate 100% of IALM(2006-08) 
Rate of Leave Availment tl.uu% 8.uu% 
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2018 & 31 March 2017 is as shown below: 
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PARTICULARS For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended Ended Ended 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 

Discount rate Gra 11ity Leave encashment 

Change in assumption 0.5 % increase 0.5 % decrease 0.5 % increase 0.5 % decrease 

Impact on defined benefit obligation " 4 25 121 4 47 356 " 3 36 534 3 73 067 

Salary growth rate 

Change in assumption 0.5 % increase 0.5 % decrease 0.5 % increase 0.5 % decrease 

Impact on defined benefit obligation 4 55 851 " 4 36 812 3 78 388 " 3 44 566 

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation 
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. 

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years: 

Particulars As At As At 
31st March 31st March 

2018 2017 

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 34 72 825 20 67 424 

Between 2 and 5 years 64 32 397 50 47 878 

Between 5 and 10 years 80 75 460 64 71 541 

* There are no employees in the Jointly Controlled Entiry. 

NOTE 37 : FAIR VALUES 

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than 
those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values: 

PARTICULARS As At As At As At As At 
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 

2018 2017 2018 2017 
Level of Fair Valuation - Leval 2 Carrying Value Fair Value 
Financial assets 
Investment 14384 689 27 78 000 14384 689 27 78 000 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings: " " " " 

Amortised Cost: " " " 

There have been no transfers between level 1 & 3 during the period. 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, short term loans and advances, short term 
borrowings, trade payables and short term financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments. 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

The fair value of Investment being unquoted, have been done on NAV method based on the last available audited accounts. 
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NOTE 38 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other 
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is 
to maximise the shareholder value. ' 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the 
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend 
payment to shareholders, return capital tp shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing 
ratio, which is total debt to equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and 
cash equivalents. 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Long Term 
Short Term 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 

Net debts 
Equity 
Debt I Eauity Ratio 

As At 
31st March 

2018 

239 36 52 543 
- 14 91 819 

239 2160724 
2g 46 55 087 

8.12 

(Amount in Rs.) 
As At 

31st March 
2017 

197 79 52 406 
5526010 

197 24 26 396 
26 39 81 247 

7.47 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it 
meets financial covenants attached .to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. 
Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have 
been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2018 
and 31 March 2017. 

NOTE 39: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES: 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits and 
employee liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's 
principal financial assets include security deposits, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive dire'ctly 
from its operations. 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management has assigned the 
responsibility to oversee the management of these risks to its treasury team. The treasury team assesses the financial risks and 
takes appropriate action to mitigate those risks. The treasury team provides assurance to the Company's senior managementthat 
the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, 
measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below. 

Market risk : 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected 

-------•---bY-market-risk-inciude loansand!X>rrowingsand-SeGUritydeposits. 

The sensitivity an~lyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017. 

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity, other post-retirement 
obligations and other provisions. 

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the 
financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017. 

Interest rate risk: 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company does not have any non current obligations with floating rate of interest. The Company has 
floating rate of interest in respect of current borrowings. 

Interest rate Sensitivity Analysis: 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and 
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before taxes is affected through the impact on 
floating rate borrowings, as follows: 
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Particulars 

Interest rate Sensitivity Analysis : 

As At 

31st March 

2018 

(Amount in Rs.) 

As At 

31st March 

2017 

Effect on 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable 
possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and 
borrowings affectedWith all other variables held constant,the 
Company's profit before taxes is affected through the impact on 
floating rate borrowings,as follows : 

Inc . I Dec. in Effect on Inc . / Dec. In profit before 
basis points profit before basis points taxes 

taxes 

50 - 50 

- 50 - 50 -

Long Term Borrowings 

Long Term Borrowings 

Short Term Borrowings 

Short Term Borrowings 

50 - 110 09 464 50 - 1 10 99 266 

- 50 11009464 - 50 11099266 

The Positive amount represents increase in profits while a negative amount represents decrease in profits. 

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis i~ based on the currently observable market 
envirenment. 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company's does not have any foreign currency exposure 

Foreign currency sensitivity 

The company does not have any foreign currency risk so foreign currency sensitivity clause not applicable 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing 
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is being driven by Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are 
defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor 
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data 
of credit losses. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets 
disclosed in the notes. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with 
respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely 
independent markets. 

In view of subsequent realisation the management believes that the trade receivables on 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are not 
_s.ubjectto_anyJurtber_creditrisk.Accordingly,.no.new.etedit-lossesru-e.beingaGGOunted-for. 

Balances with Banks 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with 
the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to 
each counterparty. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's 
potential failure to make payments. 

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 is the 
carrying amounts of balances with banks. 

Liquidity risk 

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity offunding and flexibility through the use of long term bank loans, 
short term borrowings and finance leases etc. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing 
within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. 
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(Amount In Rs.) 

Particulars On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 > 5 Total 
months months years years 

For the Year ended 31.03.2018 
- - -Long term borrowings (including Current Maturities) 

Short term borrowings 239 36 52 543 - - - 239 36 52 543 
Trade payables 
Other liabilities 

For the Year ended 31.03.2017 
Long term borrowings (including Current Maturities) 
Short term borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

-
239 36 52 543 

197 79 52 406 
-
-

197 79 52 406 

4 28 85 060 -
77 28 28 298 -
81 57 13 358 . 

5 53 22 207 -
80 93 17 008 

86 46 39 215 . 
NOTE 40: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

- 4 28 85 060 
- 77 28 28 298 

- 320 93 65 901 

197 79 52 406 

- 5 53 22 207 
80 9317 008 

. 284 25 91 621 

The preparation of the Holding company and its jointly controlled entity financial statements requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.These include recognition and 
measurement of financial instruments, estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
intangible assets, valuation of inventories, measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units, measurement 
of employee benefits, actuarial assumptions, provisions etc. 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Holding company and its jointly controlled entity 
continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates 
are revised and in any future periods affected. 

A. Judgments 

In the process of applying the Holding company and its jointly controlled entity accounting policies, management has 
made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements: 

Operating lease commitments-Company as lessee 

The Company has entered into leasing arrangements wherein the Company is required to pay monthly lease rentals.The 
Compay has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements e.g. lease term, lease 
rental income, fair value of the land, transfer I retention of significant risks and rewards of ownership of land determined the 
lease as operating leases. 

Fianance lease Company as Lessee 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. 

B. Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the 
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may 
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected 
in the assumptions when they occur. 

(i) Gratuity benefits 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
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In determining the appropriate discount rate, management c.onsiders the interest rates of government bonds, and 
extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based 
on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Future salary increases and pension increases are based 
on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Further details about the assumptions used, including a 
sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 33. 

(ii) Impairment offinancial assets 

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. 
The Holding company and its jointly controlled entity uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the 
inputs to the impairment calculation based on the company's past history and other factors at the end of each reporting 
period. 

(iii) Estimates related to useful life of tangible assets 

Depreciation on tangible assets is calculated on a straight·line basis over the useful lives estimated by the management. 
These rates are in line with the lives prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The management has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of all its assets. The management based upon the 
nature of asset, the operating condition of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, past history of replacement and 
anticipated technological changes, believe.s that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful 
lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment. 

NOTE:41 During the year no dividend is paid nor proposed by the company 

NOTE:42 Events after the reporting period 

There are no reportable events that occurred after the end of the reporting period. 

NOTE:43 Other Additional information pursuant to the provisions of Para 5 of part II of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable I nil. 

NOTE:44 In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets and non-current investment have a value on realization in the 
ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated. 

NOTE:45 Revenue from operation Includes other operating revenue of Rs 16, 78,03,312 (P.Y 18,86,07, 122) representing income 
from dealing in commodities and securities which is income other than manufacturing activities. 

NOTE:46 During current reporting period, company has carried out capital work in progress ,expenses related to that has been 
capitalised. The commercial production is yet to be commenced. 

NOTE:47 Statement of Net Assets, Profit or Loss attributable to Parent 

(Amount In Rs.) 

Particulars Reporting A: Parent B: Jointly Total 
Currency Controlled Entity 

(INR) 
Nova Iron & Bijahan Coal P. 
Steel Ltd. Ltd. 

As % of Consolidated assets Net Assets: (Total 100.00 100.000 
Assets - Total 

Amount (Rs.) Liabilities) 29 46 55 087 - 29 46 55 087 

As % of Consolidated Profit or Loss Share in Profit or 99.999 0.001 100.000 

Amount (Rs.) 
(Loss) 

2 27 83 116 225 2 27 83 341 

As % of Consolidated Other Share in Other 100.000 100.0000 
Comprehensive Income Comprehensive 
Amount (Rs.) Income 78 90 499 - 78 90 499 

As % of Total Comprehensive Income Share in Total 99.999 0.001 100.000 

Amount (Rs.) 
Comprehensive 

3 06 73615 225 3 06 73 840 Income 

NOTE:48 Amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the company. 

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Customers : 

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with 
Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of 
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promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the 
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers. 

The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 

• Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period 
presented in accordance with Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

• Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application 
(Cumulative catch-up approach) 

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and its effect on the financial Statements. 

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: 

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 
which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of 
the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. 

The amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of this on the financial 
statements and the impact is not material. 

Note :49 Land under Property Plant and Equipment includes land measuring 72.95 acre amounting to Rs 194.34 Lacs bought by 
the company in the name of third parties. Transfer of the same in the company's name is yet to be initiated . 

Note :50 Standalone audited accounts as per INDAS Were prepared forthe year ending March 31st 2017 for consolidation purpose 
while the final accounts adopted inAGM were on IGAAP. 

Note: 51 The Company's manufacturing operation are shut down since July 2016 for Upgradation .Presently capital work in 
progress relating to upgradation and addition to manufacturing facilities is being undertaken. 

Note: 52 In case of Jointly controlled entity figures have been regrouped to make them comparable for consolidation purpose where 
ever considered necessary.For the previous year ended 31st March 2017 the company had not prepared consolidated 
financial statements as per Ind AS. Hence previous year figures have being reclassified and restated in terms of Ind AS 8. 

Note: 53 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary. 

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board 

For Mehra Goel & Co., (H.C.Verma) (Ajoy Shah) 
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer 
Firm Regn. No. 000517N DIN : 00007681 

(Sanjay Mehra) (R.P.Goyal) (Dheeraj Kumar) 
Partner Director Co.Secretary 
Membership No. 085389 DIN : 00006595 

-----pfilce : New Delhi 
Date : 29.05.2018 
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NOTICE 
Notice is hereby given that 26'" Annual General Meeting of Nova Iron and Steel Limited will be held on Thursday the 27"' day of 
September, 2018 at 11 :00 A.M. at its Regd. Office at Village Dagori, Tehsil Belha, District Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh to transact the 

following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31st March 2018 i.e. Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow 

Statement for the year as on that date together with Auditors' Report and Board's Report thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Singal, (DIN 00006579), who retires by rotation and being eligible, has offered 

himselffor re-appointment. 

3. To re-appoint audito"5 and to fix their remuneration and to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s ), the 

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant to the resolution passed by the 
Members of the Company at 25th Annual General Meeting held on 27/09/2017, .the Company re-appoint M/s Mehra Goel & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, firm Reg. No.000517N as Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this meeting until the 
conclusion of the 30th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held in 2022, on such remuneration plus applicable taxes 
thereon and reimburst;iment of owt of pocket expenses, as may be mutually agreed between the Chairman of the Company 
and theAuditors, from time to time." 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. To Consider Approve Alteration of the Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company and if 
thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

"Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 4, 13 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the "Act") read with applicable Rules and Regulations made thereunder and the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 

(including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such approvals, 
permissions and sanctions of appropriate authorities, departments or bodies as and to the extent necessary, consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for effecting the following alterations in the existing Object Clause of the 
Memorandum of Association (the "MOA") of the Company by substitution/deletion of following clauses of other object in the 
following manner:-

Clause No. 72 of other object by substitution/delition: 

"To Carry on the business of an Investment Company and to buy, underwrite, invest in acquire, hold, trade in commodities and 

deal in shares debentures, stocks, debenture stock, bonds, obligations and securities of any kind issued or guaranteed by any 
______ c_o_m_p_a-ny constituted or carrying on business in India or elsewhere and debentures, debenture stock bonds obligations and 

securities issued or guaranteed by any Government, State, Public Body or authority, firm or person in India elsewhere." 

Add'1tion of new clause No.99 of other object: 

"99. Wherever the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 is appearing in Memorandum of Articles, the Companies Act, 1956 be 
and is hereby substituted and be read as corresponding provisions of Companies Act, 2013." 

"Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds or things 
as may be deemed necessary to give effect to this resolution." 

5. To consider approval of material related party transactions and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, 
the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

"Resolved that pu~suant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and applicable provisions .of Companies Act, 
2013 (Act) omnibus approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors, for contracts I 
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arrangements I transactions entered/to be entered into with Related parties by the Company on such terms and conditions 
mutually agreed upon between the Company and a related party M/s Bhushan Power and Steel Limited, for an amount not 
exceeding in aggregate Rs. 500 crore (Rupees Five hundred crore only) forthe financial year 2018-19 as detailed below: 

Nature of Services agreed Proposed Values of Services to be Basis of Charges 
under the agreement availed (annually) (Rs. In Crores) 

Sale 100 Market Price or actual expenses. 

Purchase 100 Market Price or actual expenses. 

Arrangement 300 Market Price or actual expenses. 

Total 500 

"Resolved further that the Directors of the Company be and is hereby Severally or Jointly authorised to enter into agreement 

and to do all such acts, deeds and things, that may arise with regard to any transactions with the related party(ies ), finalise the 
terms and conditions as may be considered necessary, expedient or desirable and execute agreement(s), document(s) as 
may be necessary or desirable, in order to give effectto this Resolution." 

"Resolved further that all contracts/arrangement entered into by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or 
contemplated in any of the foregoing resolution are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects." 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 13/08/2018 

NOTES FOR MEMBERS ATTENTION: 

By order of the Board 
For Nova Iron and Steel Limited 

Dheeraj Kumar 
Company Secretary 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint Proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself 
and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty(50) 
and holding in aggregate not more than ten(10) percent of the total share capital of the Company. The proxy, in order to be 
effective, must be deposited with the Company at its Registered Office duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours 
before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, 
societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable. 

------2-. -f'.!wnruant-t0-the-pmvisiGn-Gf-Sectioo--'152-of-Gempanies-Aet,2Q~~.Mr~rsiAgh-Awatar,Mr.-Maniekam-Rameharn:lran,--Mr~. ---­
Arvind Gupta, and Mrs. SumiranAggarwal Independent Director of the Company are not eligible for retire by rotation. 

3. The members of the Company at their 25th Annual General Meeting held on 27/09/2017, had appointed M/s. Mehra Goel & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regd. No. 00051 ?N, New Delhi, as Auditors of the Company, to hold office for the period of 
five years i.e. from the conclusion of the 25th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 30th Annual General Meeting to 
be held in 2022 and the said appointment was subject to ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting. 

The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, has amended Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, effective from 7th May, 
2018, whereby first proviso to Section 139( 1) is omitted which provided for ratification of appointment of Auditors by members 
at every Annual General Meeting. 

In view of the same, the fresh approval of the members is sought for re-appointment of Mis Mehra Goel & Co. Chartered 
Accounts, Firm Regd. No. 00051 ?N, New Delhi, as Auditor of the Company, for the remaining term of four years i.e. from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 30th annual General Meeting to be held in 2022. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are in any way concerned or 
interested in the resolutions set out at Item No.3 of the Notice. 

94 



NOVA IRON AND STEEL LTD. 

4. Non Resident members are requested to inform immediately to RTA (a) change in residential status on relating to India for 
permanent settlement (b) particulars of bank account maintained in India with complete name of bank, branch address, 
account type, account number, if not furnished earlier. 

5. Mis Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd, are Registrar & Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company.Any correspondence 
relating to shares can be made to the company's registrar at their following address: 

Mis Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, 
D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020, 
Ph. Nos. 011-40450193to 97, Email: rta.nova.rg@gmail.com, website: www.skylinerta.com 
Members are requested to notify the change of Address if any. 

6. In case of joint holders of shares attending the meeting, only such joint holders who are higher in the order of names will be 
entitled to vote. 

7. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books shall remain closed from 21'' September 2018 to 27~ September 
201 B (both days inclusive). 

8. Members seeking information about the accounts are requested to write at least 10 days before the date of the meeting to the 
Company so that it may be convenient to keep the information ready for the meeting. 

9. All the documents referred to accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the registered office of the Company on all 
working days except Sunday between 11.00AM to 1.00 PM upto the date of Annual General Meeting. 

10. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP ID numbers for easy 
identification of attendance at the meeting. 

11. Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report at the Meeting and proxies should bring attendance slips duly 
filled in for attending the Meeting. 

12. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by 
every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN 
to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical 
form can submit their PAN details to the CompanyiRTA. 

13. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Companies (Management and 
Administration Rules), 2014, companies will serve Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode to 
those Members who have registered their e-mail address either with the Company or RTA. 

Members who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company are requested to submit their request with their valid 
e-mail address to RTA. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to register/update their e-mail address with their 
Depository Participant(s) directly. Members of the Company, who have registered their email-address, are entitled to receive 
such communication in physical form upon request. 

14. Notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to those shareholders/beneficial owners whose name will appear in the register 
of the members/list of beneficiaries received from the depositories as on 24'h day of August, 2018. 

15. The detail of Directors proposed to be re-appointed, under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 36 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 at the Annual 
General Meeting are given below. 

············································································--·------------------------

2 Date of Birth 19/06/1960 
·················----------r--·-------·---------------_, 

,__3 __ -+-_E_x_pe_rt_ie_s_/E_x_p_e_ri_en_c __ e._i_n_A_re_a ____ t __ Steel Sector, Project Implementation, Planning and Policy Maker 
4 Qualification Graduation 

(iii) Rohne 
(iv) Atma 

(v) Skap Electronic Pvt. Ltd. 
(vi) Aarti Tube Private Limited 
(vii) Bijahan Coal Private 

Shareholding in the Compan·y----+~N~i~I -· ·········································--···--------------_, 

as on 31/03/2018 
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16. Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed in respect of special business. 

17. Voting through electronic means 

(i) The Company is pleased to provide its members facility to exercise their to vote on resolutions proposed to be 
considered at the 26'h Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through 
e-Voting Services. The facility, of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other 
than venue oftheAGM ("remote e-voting") will be provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL): 

The instructions and procedure for shareholders voting through electronically are as under: 

-· 

(ii) The voting period begins on 24.09.2018 at 10:00 AM and ends on 26.09.2018 at 5:00 PM. During this period 
shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 
(record date) of 21.09.2018, may cast their vote electronically. Thee-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter. 

(iii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not bsentitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

(iv) The shareholders should log on to thee-voting websitewww.evotingindia.com. 

(v) Click on Shareholders. 

(vi) Now Enter your User ID 

a. ForCDSL: 16digitsbeneficiarylD, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

(v'il) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

(viii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any 
company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(ix) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders) . Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 

requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the 
PAN field. Sequence number is printed on address label. . In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of O's before the 
number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh 
Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field 

Dividend Bank Enter your Dividend Bank A/c Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 

Ale-Details- d ematacco_unLQrJoJbe_c_ompan:y_[ecmdsJn_ordectoJogin. 

OR Date of 
. If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member 

Birth (DOB) 
id I folio number in the Dividend Bank A/c details field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

(xi) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab. 

(xii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding 
shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts fore-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. 
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(xiii) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only fore-voting on the resolutions contained in this 
Notice. 

(xiv) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Nova Iron & Steel Limited on which you choose to vote. 

(xv) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option "YES/NO" for voting. 
Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that 
you dissent to the Resolution. 

(xvi) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

(xvii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xviii) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

(xix) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page. 

(xx) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and 
click on Forgot Password & enterthe details as prompted by the system. 

(xxi) Note for Non- Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be 
able to cast their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, 
if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system forthe scrutinizer to verify the same. 

(xxii) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become Member 9f the Company after despatch of the Notice and 
holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e.21.09.2018 may follow the same instructions as mentioned above fore-Voting. 

(xxiii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding a-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e­
voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

18. A member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through remote e-voting or at the meeting. If a member casts votes 
by both mode then voting done through remote a-voting shall prevail. 

19. The member who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again. 

20. The scruitinizer for voting is Mis V.P. Chhabra & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, 386-C, Rajguru Nagar, 
---------Ludl'liana~Rul'ljab)~. -------------------------------------
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STATEMENT ANNEXED PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL 
BUSINESS 

ITEMN0.4 

As the Members of the Company are aware the Companies Act, 1956 has been replaced with the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has also notified the Rules pertaining to the new Companies Act. In view of the above in the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company the words "Companies Act, 1956" appearing in the Objects Clause need to be 
replaced with the words applicable provisions of"CompaniesAct, 2013" wherever required. The main business of the Company is to 
manufacture and trading of Iron and Steel Products. The rapid growth and digital revolution and Government of India's Smart City 
project has prompted the Company to start working towards new revenue streams which are not specifically covered under the 
other objects of the Company. 

Hence, to enable the Company to capitalize on these business opportunities, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting 
held on 13/08/2018 has approved, subject to the consent of the shareholders, amendment in Clause 72 (Other Clause) and addition 
of new clause No.99 of the MOAofthe Company in the manner as set out in the Special Resolution at Item no. 4 of this Notice. The 
Board has also approved to streamline and align the existing Object Clause of the MOA of the Company as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The proposed activities can be carried out, under the existing circumstances, conveniently and 
advantageously along with the existing activities of the Company. These will enable the Company to carry on its business 
economically and efficiently. 

"The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, has amended Section 110(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, effective from 09/02/2018, 
which Provided that any item of business required to be transacted by means of postal ballot under clause (a), may be transacted at 
a general meeting by a company which is required to provide the facility to members to vote by electronic means under Section 108, 
in the manner provided in that section." 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 4, 13, 110 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, read with applicable Rules and 
Regulations made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being 
in force), alteration of the Object Clause of the MOA of the Company requires the approval of the members by means of a Special 
Resolution. Copy of the existing MOA, copy indicating the proposed amendments and other allied documents, if any, being referred 
in this resolution would be available for inspection by the members, free of cost, at the Registered Office of the Company during 
11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working days (Monday to Saturday), up to and including the last date of voting through e-voting. 

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the said resolution except to the extent of their shareholding, if any. The Board recommends the resolution 
under Item No. 4 for approval of the members as a Special Resolution. 

ITEMN0.5 

Pursuant to Regulation 23(4) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Company is require to take approve of Shareholder for material 
Related Party Transaction .. The Company is inter alia, engaged in the business of manufacturing, marketing, trading, purchase and 
sale of Iron and Steel products. The Company in the ordinary course of its business engaged in purchase and sell machines, spare 
parts, raw material, take loan/advances, as per agreements etc., from Mis Bhushan Power & Steel Limited, of which Company is an 
associate company. The Mutual Transaction in the contract of SEBI Regulation is "All material related party transactions shall ___ _ 
require approvalonlle snarenolaers tnrougfi resoluf1on and the related parties shall abstain from voting on such resolutions 
whether the entity is a related party to the particular transaction or not" The said transaction are at Arm's length and not a related 
party transaction under section 188 of Act. 

Mis Bhushan Power & Steel Limited is a 'Related Party' within the meaning Section 2 (76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

The Company purchases raw material, machinery, spare parts and loan/advances for manufacture of products. Similarly, products 
manufactured by the Company are sold to M/s Bhushan Power & Steel Limited. The Board is of the opinion that the said 
transactions, related party transaction and are in the best interest of the Company. 

Transactions for Sale and purchase, transfer or receipt of products, goods, materials, services, other obligations such as 
loan/advances from and sale of products to Bhushan Power & Steel Limited are deemed to be 'material' in nature as defined in 
Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as they may exceed 10% of the annual turnover of the Company in future. Thus, in 
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terms of explanation to Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, these transactions require the approval of the 
Members. Board considered these transaction in the meeting held on 13/08/2018 and recommend for the approval of shareholders 
as set out in resolution at no. 5 of the Notice. 

The particulars of the contracts I arrangements I transactions with related party are as under: 

Particulars Information 
Name of the Related Party Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 
Name of Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel who is Sanjay Singal 
related 
Nature of Relationship Common director and holding more than 2% shares in 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 
Material terms of the Contracts I arrangements I Purchase, Sale, transfer or receipt of products, goods, 
transactions materials or other oblioations on arm's lenoth basis 
Monetary Value a) Not -exceeding Rs. 100 Crore towards purchases of 

products, materials, services etc. 
b) Not exceeding Rs. 100 crore towards Sale of products. 
c) Not exceedino Rs. 300 crore toward loan/advances. 

Are the transactions in the ordinary course of business Yes 
Are the transactions on an arm's lenoth basis Yes 
Whether the transactions would meet the arm's length Yes 
standard in the opinion of the Company's Transfer Pricing 
Consultants 
Whether the transactions have been approved by Audit Yes 
Committee and the Board of Directors 
Any other information relevant or important for the Members None 
to make a decision on the proposed transactions 

Except Mr. Sanjay Singal, Mr. Aniket Singal (Director and relative) none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company or their respective relatives, are concerned or interested 'financially' or 'otherwise' in the Resolution at Item No. 5 of the 
Notice. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 13/08/2018 
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NOVA IRON AND STEEL LIMITED 
Registered Office: Village-Dagori, Tehsil-Belha District-Bilaspur (Chhattisgarh) 

Email: rai_nisl2007@yahoo.com, website: www.novaironsteel.com 

(CIN: L02710CT1989PLC010052) Phone: 07752-285206, Fax 07752-285213 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

1. Full Name of Shareholder I Proxy ............................................................ . 

2. Registered Folio No .............................. No of Shares .......................... . 

3. Client ID ..................................... DP ID .................................. . 

4. If, Proxy, Full Name of Shareholder ....................................................... .. 

I hereby record my presence at the 26'h Annual General Meeting of the Company held at Village Dagori, Tehsil­

Belha, Distt. Bilaspur (Chhattisgarh) PIN-495224 on Thursday, the 27'" day of September, 2018 at 11 :00 a.m. 

(Signature of Shareholder I Proxy) 

Name of Member/Proxy 

Note: 

Please complete the Folio. DP ID-Client ID No. and name, sign the Attendance Slip and hand it over at the 
Attendance Verification counter at the entrance of the Meeting Hall. 
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NOVA IRON AND STEEL LIMITED 
Registered Office: Village-Dagori, Tehsil-Belha District-Bilaspur (Chhattisgarh) 

Email: rai_nisl2007@yahoo.com, website: www.novaironsteel.com 
(CIN: L0271OCT1989PLC010052) Phone: 07752-285206, Fax 07752-285213 

MGT-11 

Proxy Form 

Name of the Member (s): ............................................................................................................................................. 

Registered Address: .................................................................................................................................................. 

Email id: .................................................................................................................................................................. 

Folio No./Client Id: ..................................................................................................................................................... 

DPID: ..................................................................................................................................................................... 

I/We, being the member(s) of ....................... Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint 

1 Name: .......................... Address ........................... E-mail Id: ........................... Signature: .......................... 

or failing him 

2 Name: .......................... Address ........................... E-mail Id: ........................... Signature: ......................... 

or failing him 

3 Name: .......................... Address ........................... E-mail Id: ........................... Signature: ......................... 
or failing him 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 26'" Annual General Meeting of the company, to be 
held on Thursday, the 27'" day of September 2018 at 11.00 a.m. at Village-Dagori, Tehsil-Belha, District-Bilaspur (Chhattisgarh) and at 
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

No. Resolutions 
Ordinary Business 

1. Adoption of Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statement of the company for year ended 31" March 2018 i.e. 
Audited Balance Sheet as al 31"March 2018 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow statement for the year as 
on that date together with Auditors' Report and Board's Report thereon. 

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Singal (DIN 00006579), who retires by rotation and being eligible has offered 
himself for re-appointment. 

3 To re-appointment of auditor and to fix their remuneration. 

Special Business 

4. To Consider and approve alteration of the object clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company. 
5 . To Consider and approve material related party transactions. 

• 
Signed this ...... day of... ...... 2018 

Signature of shareholder ...................... Affix 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ...................... Rs. 1/= 
Revenue 
Stamp 

Note: 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less 
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. For the resolution, explanatory statement and notes please refer to the Notice of26'h Annual General Meeting. 

3. Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission. 
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NOVA IRON AND STEEL LIMITED 

Registered Office: Village-Dagori, Tehsil-Belha District-Bilaspur (Chhattisgarh) 
Email: rai_nisl2007@yahoo.com, website: www.novaironsteel.com 

(CIN: L02710CT1989PLC010052) Phone: 07752-285206, Fax 07752-285213 

To, 

Shareholders, 

0 

This is intended to bring into your notice that the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
directed listed entities to seek the copy of PAN Card and Bank Account details from the shareholders 
with the objective of streamlining the processes relating to maintenance of records, transfer of securities and 
seamless payment of dividend/interest/redemption amounts to shareholders vide its circular no. 
SEBl/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated April 20, 2018. 

Therefore, we request your assistance in providing the following details for our records, which shall be linked to 

your respective folio: 

1. Name of the Shareholder 

2. Address of the Shareholder 

3. Folio No. 

4. Self-attested copy of PAN Card; and 

5. Original Cancelled Cheque leaf duly displaying name of the account holder I Bank Passbook showing 
IFSC Code, Bank Account Number and Name of the Account Holder duly attested by the Bank. 

Kindly post/courier/hand-deliver the above mentioned details and documents to the Company's Registered 
Office Address as mentioned below latest by 22/09/2018: 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi 110020 

Contact No.: 011-40450193 to 97, Email rai_nisl2007@yahoo.com 

Contact Person: Mr. AshishAggarwal -9868766651 

Shareholders are requested to submit the scan copy of the same on email Id as mentioned above. 

Demat account holders are requested to submit the same to their respective DPs. 
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ROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE OF THE 26™ ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING OF NOVA IRON AND STEEL LIMITED 

Venue: 
Nova Iron & Steel Ltd. 
Regd. Office: Village Dagori, 
Tehsil Belha, Distt-Bilaspur 
Chhattisgarh- 495224 

NOVA IRON & STEEL 

O.agori Bhojpuri Mod 

Tata Posari 
Mandir 

Silha.Mod 

High Court 

Na.ya Para 

New Bus Stand 

•------------------ --ritra 

Flyo>1er Ma.htira.na 
Pratap ChOIYk 

Bilaspur 



REGISTERED BOOK POST/COURIER 

If undelivered, Please return to: 

NOVA IRON AND STEEL LIMITED 
Regd. Office: 
Village Dagori, Tehsil Belha 
Dfstt-Bilaspur, (Chhattisgarh)- 495224 


